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To

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Membars,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 315t March, 2024.

1.
14

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR/STATE OF AFFAIRS

Background & Macro environment

Power sector in India is one of the most diversified when compared to other economies of the world.
Sources for power generation range from commercial sources such as coal, lignite, natural gas, oll,
hydro and nuclear power 1o non-conventional sources such as wind, solar, small hydro, bagasse and
co-generation. The demand for electricity in the country has been growing at a rapid pace and is expected
1o grow further in the years to come,

During the year 25,911 MW of generation capacity was added into the system. and 18,563 MW in renewable
segment comprising of hydro and other renewable sources, leading to installed capacity of the country
reaching to 441.869.55 MW of which Thermal comprising of coal, gas, liquid fuel constitule 55% (243,217
MW}, Hydro 11% (46,928 MW), Muclear 2% (8,180 MW) and Renewable 33% (143,645 MW). The energy
generation, including generation from renewable sources, increased by 7.04% from 1,624.47 BU in FY 22-23
to 1,738.83 BU in FY 23-24. Similarly, generation from renewable sources including supply from small
hydro planis increased by nearly 10.86% from 203.37 BU in FY 22-23 1o 22546 BU in FY 23-24.

On the Renawable front, nearly 18,485 MW capacity was added during the year, with increase in Solar
based capacity contributing nearly 819 of new capacity addition from 66,780 MW in FY 22-23 to 81.814
MW in FY 23-24, loflowed by nearly 18% contribution in new capacity addition in Wind power from 42 633
MW in FY 22-23to 45,887 MW and the remaining 1% from other types of resources, e.g., Cogeneration,
Small Hydro and Municipal Waste from 15,746 MW in FY 22.23 to 15,944 MW in FY 23-24, the installed
capacity in renewable space has now reached 144 GW excluding Hydro and 191 GW including Hydra
of 47 GW by end of the year, This large capacity addition in the renewable space will contribute towards
maintaining 24 x 7 power supply to all and help achieve nat-zero target by 2070.

Market scenario

In India, market participants enter into long term, medium term and short-tesm contracts to trade in power.
Long term agreements are generally for a period of more than 5 years and upto 25 years when power Is
contracted from coal and lignite based generating plants, up to 15 years in case of gas-based plants, and
upto 35 yaars in case of hydro-based plants. Medium term agreements are for a period of more than 1 year
and up to 5 years in duration, and shart-lerm agreements are for any duration up 10 1 year.

The shorl- lerm power market helps Discom 1o meet unplanned and fluctuating power requirements af its
consurners, and on the seller's side it enables power producers as well as procurers to sell their surplus
power. In addition to Exchange based transactions, the short-term power market is composed of bilateral
ransactions between traders & utilities, direct transactions among Discoms and also the Deviation
Settlenent Mechanism, With the resclution of regulatory jurisdiction of defivery based bong durabon
contracts the power axchanges are permitted to introduce Term Ahead Market (‘TAM') contracts where
delivery duration is from T+2' up to T+90' days / up to 12 Weeks ahead’ up 1o ‘3 months’ for transacting
in conventional power, high price power, Wind, Solar, Hydro and other types of Renewable anargy.

In FY 23-24, the transaction in shor term market was 218.22 BU when compared to 194.39 BU in

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED 1)
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FY¥ 22-23, the volume traded on the power exchanges was 121.49 BU in FY 23-24 when compared to
102.85 BU in FY 22-23.

%) GPXIL

Amdy Bk

Sino | Year Total generation (BU) e e
: Volume (BU) % of total generation

1 FY 09-10 764.03 65.90 B.B3

2 FY 10-11 B809.45 B1.56 10.08

3 | FYi11-12 874.17 84.51 10.80

4 FY 12-13 |07 49 88.94 10.80

5 |FY13-14 862,90 104,64 10.87

8 |FY14-15 1,045.09 98.99 9.47

7 | FY 1518 1,102.85 115.23 10.45

8 | FY 1617 1,157.94 119.23 10.30
5 FY 17-18 1,202.97 127.62 10.61
10 | FY 18-19 1,245.32 14520 11.68
11 FY 19-20 1,248.17 137.16 10.99
12 | FY 20-21 1,233.44 146.007 11.84
13 FY 21-22 1,320.46 186.75 14,14
14 | FY 22-23 1,420.69 194.35 12.68

[ 15 FY 23-24 1,511.68 218.22 14.44

{Source: CERC Monthly Market Monitoring report)

The volume traded in short term market in FY 23-24 increased by 23.87 BU or 12.28% when compared
1o previous year. The Y-o-Y comparison for the previous two years for different constituents of short-term
market is as undar;

Volume transacted (BUs) :
S.no Category Change
FY 22-23 FY 23-24
1 Power Exchangas 102.95 12149 18.00%
2 | Bilateral (through Traders) 33.81 46.21 36.69%
3 | Diract (between Discoms) 31.30 23.74 =24.15%
4 | DEM 26.30 26.79 1.B6%
Total 194.35 21822 12.28%

(Source: CERC Monthly Market monitering report)

The figure below depicts the change in components of short term market over the two pasl years i.e FY
22-23 and FY 23-24

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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Similarly, the segment contribution of each companent of short-larm market to the overall generation aver
the past two years i.e. FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 is as given below:

g FY 202223 FY 202324

ey Volume (MU) | % contribution | Volume (MU) | % contribution
Long term 12,26,344 B6.32% 12,903,462 B5.56%
Bitateral (Traders + Direct) 65,100 4.58% 69,945 4.63%
Power Exchanges 102,954 7.25% 1,21,490 B.04%
Balancing (DSM) 26,205 1.85% 26,785 1.77%
Total Energy generated 14,20,693 15,11,662

(Source: CERC Monthly marked moniloring repart)

Some of the major reasons that can be attributed for increment'decremant in different segments of short-
term power markets in FY 2023-24 are:

Power Exchanges: Socio-political events like State elections in prominent states in Northem region of
the country led to States le-up power to meet short term requirements, also, during the year CERC notified
regulations, CERC (indian Electricity Grid Code) Regulations 2023 ('IEGC’), implementation of provisions
related to Sharing of Interstate Transmission Charges Regulations and Temporary — General Network
Access (T-GNA') as provided in General Network Access Regulations 2022 (\GNA Raguiation’), where
lew of the policy and regulatory events that effected transaction in power exchange space. The salient
leaturas of these regulations ane:

a. Thearbitrage in transmission charge betwaan collective and bilaleral transactions has was eliminated,
that resulied in transfer of transactions from contingency market to DAM since sellers are no longer
requirad to pay inter State transmission charges

b. Under IEGC, generators with long term PPAs would also be able to sall their Un Reguisitioned
Surplus (‘URS') power which is not requisitioned by the beneficianes in DAM without the consent of
buyers. To improve availability of sell in the market this surplus was allowed 10 participate in market
by MOP notified 15t Amendment to Electricity (Late Payment Surcharge and related matters) Rules
2022) on 28.02.2024. These Rules also provide for penalty in terms of reduced fixed charges lo
panarators if they fail to offer URS power in the market. This measure helps improve sell side liquidity

in exchange platform.

POWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED
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c.

Generators are now allowed to meet their supply cbligations in case of unit shut down or forced
outage by purchasing power through exchanges

Buyers will be able 1o usa their GNA optimally as transmission charges in collective transactions
will be applicable only for the buy quantum in excess of thair GNA, which will facilitate buy on the
exchange, as the working capital requirement will be reduced for participation in DAM and DAC

Interstate transmission charges and losses will only be applicable on buyers. This provides level
playing field for all generators irespective of their locations

The overall philesophy of transmission planning has changed, Efforts are made enable adequate
transmission capacity, which will secure a congestion free ransmission system and reduce volume
lass due to congestion

The above Policy and Regulatory measures will facilitate energy transition in a big way by providing
Nexibility to thermal generators to replace thelr brown power with green power, intraduction of RE
aggregators, and connectivity to RE generating capacity of 50 MW and above. All such measures will
deapen green market on the exchange platform in near future.

Furthar, the Ministry of Coal, Government of India, has amended the Shakti Policy in November-2023
1o allow generators including IPPs without PPA to sell power in all segments of power exchanges, i.e. in
DAM, RTM and TAM. The CEA has finalized the phasing plan for thermal plants to bring the technical
minimum operations up 1o 40% which is currently at 55%. This will help in adding more AE capacity and
efficient intagration with the grid.

Majority of day ahead and bilateral transactions on PXs did nat face any congestion in transmission
corridor for interregional flow of power. Investments made towards development of adequate transmission
infrastructurs in past few years has led to days of near negligible congestion in inter regional transmission
cormdor. Few Policy and Regulalory developments that govemed transactions at ‘PRATYAY platform are
as under:

Price Cap in Collective and bilateral segment

CERC vide Suo muto Order 04/SM/2022 dated 01.04.2022 directed power exchange 1o introduce
price cap of As. 12/&Wh in collective Contracts, i.e. G-DAM, conventional DAM and RTM Contracts.
Later vide Suo muto Order 05/SM/2022 dated 06.05.2022 directed price cap of Rs. 12%Wh be
implemented in collective and bilateral Contracts, i.e. G-DAM, conventional DAM, RTM, Intraday,
Day Ahead Contingency, Weekly and Any Day Confracts, till 30.06,2023. Later vide Suo mute Order
08'SM/2022 dated 30.06.2022 the price cap of As. 12/kWh was extended till 30.09.2022.

Vide Suo muto Order 13/SM/2022 dated 29.09.2022 the price cap of Rs. 12/kWh was extended
il 31122022 and vide Suo muto Order 17/SM2022 dated 28.12.2022 it was extended 1o furthar
period.

CERC vide Suo muto Order 04/SM/2023 dated 31.03.2023 directed power exchange 1o introduce

price cap as:

- Rs. O’kWh to Rs. 10vkWh for all Contracts, .. DAM (including G-DAM), RTM, intra Day, Day
Ahead Contingency and Term Ahead Contracts (including GTAM Contracts)

- Hs. 0'kWh to Rs. 20kWh in High Price Day Ahead Market segment

Later, vide Order in Patition no 170/MP2023 dated 21.00.2023, CERC approved introduction of
bilateral contracts in High Price segment with price cap of up 1o Rs. 20/kWh

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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Mew Contract introduced in *PRATYAY" platform
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Introduction of High Price Day Ahead Market Contract

PXIL received approval from CERC 1o introduce High Price-Day Ahead Market ('HP-DAM')
Contract vide Order dated 11.04.2023 in Collective segment.

The following categories of generators are eligible to participate in HP-DAM

« Gas based Power plants using imponed RLNG and Naphtha

+ Imported Coal based power plant using imparted Coal

=  Battery Energy Storage Systems (BESS)

Introduction of Tertiary Reserve Ancillary Services (TRAS) Contracts

CERC notified implementation of Ancillary Services Regulation 2022 from 05.12.2022

a.  Prmary Reserve Ancillary Services and Secondary Reserve Ancillary Services were
implemented from 05.12.2022

b. Vide Order dated 15.02.2023, CERC notified implementation of Teriary Reserve Ancillary
Services (TRAS) from 01.04.2023

« Day Ahead AS Market and Real Time AS Market Contracts are proposed 10 be
infroduced

. Under TRAS, the Power exchanges collect Orders from parlicipants and share it to
NLDC

s  MNLDGC will collect Orders from Power exchange, discover price and clear participants
. Based on requirement NLDC will provide instruction to clear participants 1o fulfill
ancillary service requiremeant
¢, PYIL submitted Patition on 15.03.2023 seeking approval to introduce Day Ahead AS
Market and Real Time AS Market Contracts

Later, vide Order dated 27.04.2023 CERC approved introduction of Day Ahead AS Markat and
Real Time AS Market Confracts in TRAS segment.

Introduction of High Price bilateral contracts in Contingency and TAM segments

CERC vide Order dated 21.09.2023 approved introduction of High Price Bilateral transactions
im Contingency and Term Ahead segmants. With approval of High Price bilateral transachons,
eligible entities, e.g. Gas based Power plants using imported ALNG and Naphtha, imported
coal-based power plants using imported coal and BESS, these plants had opportunity to
participate and sell power in HP-DAM, Intra Day, Day Ahead Contingency and Term Ahead
Market Contracts

Introduction of new Contracts in REC segment under provisions of REC Regulation 2022
CERC vide Order dated 18.10.2023, gave two directions:

=  Conduct one more auction session on 2nd Wednesday of the month in addition 1o existing
last Wednesday of the month

»  Tosubmit separate Petition seeking approval to introduce new Contracts in REC segment

PXIL later submitted a fresh Petition on 22.12.2023 seeking approval tointroduce new Contracts
to meat market paricipants requirements, the new Contracts awaiting approval from CERC are
Continuous matching mechanism, Single Sided Forward Auction Contract and Single Sided
Reversa Auction Contract.,

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED 5 ’
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€.  Approval of transaction fee under provision of PMR 2021

CERC vide Order dated 05.04,2023 approved transaction fee up to 2 paise / kWh on cleared quantum
from each Buyer and Seller for Contracts executed in Integrated Day Ahead Market, i.a. G-DAM,
DAM and HP-DAM, Real Time Market, Contingancy Contracts and Term Ahead Market Contracts
operating under provisions of Regulation 5 of PMA 2021,

d. Imposition of Section-11 in Karnataka

The Government of Karnataka vide notification dated 16.10.2023 imposed Section 11 of the Electricity
Act 2003 directing all generators in State of Kamataka 1o operate and maintain their genarating
stations fo maximum exportable capacity and supply all electricity generated to State Grid. This
resulted in sell side availability getting reduced in different types of Contract.

e. Implementation of IEGC, first amendment to Sharing of Interstate and remaining provisions of
General Network Access from 01.10.2023

CERC vide separate notifications dated 03.08.2023 informed implementation below regulations from
01.10.2023:

i.  Indian Electricity Grid Code 2023

il First amandment to Sharing of Transmission charges Regulations 2020

ili.  Ramaining provisions of General Network Access Regulations 2022

Migration from erstwhile Open Access Regime to General Network Access regime from 01.10.2023,
resulted in many State Discoms being unaware of systems / processes applicable under Temporary —
General Network Access (' T-GNA'), this resulted in dip in volumes traded in the manths of October 1o

December-2023 when compared 1o same pericd of previcus year. Later, as State Discoms overcome
implamentation issues, the transactions revived in ‘PRATAY" platform.

At PXIL, the transaction volume in term ahead segment contributed more when compared 1o volume
in Collective sagment comprising of IDAM and ATM

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24
Integrated Day Ahead Markat
- Conventional (DARM) 187.14 TB.AT
Fenewable (G-DAM) 041 o
High Price (HP-DAM) Mot applicable 177
Real Time Market 12.56 27.65
Bilateral {Cmtlngpaﬂq.r and Term Ahead Market)
- Comventional 8,224,439 B,670.96
- Green 1,006.69 194.72
| - High Price Not applicable 189.92 |
 Total (MUs) 9,521.29 9,178.59

Note:

1.  HPDAM Contract was approved by CERC vide Order dated 11.04.2023, hance no transaction
volume are reported for FY 2022-23

2.  HPTAM Contract was approved by CERC vide Order dated 21.09.2023, hence no transaction
volume are reported for FY 2022-23

(s POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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1.3

1.4

Deviation Settlement Mechanism (DSM): The volume transacted under DSM category has
increased marginally by 1.9% from 26.3 BU in FY 22-23 10 26.8 BU in FY 23-24, this coukd be
attributed to market participants meeting their requiremnents through DSM to overcome the real time
demand/supphy deficit during the year.

Traders & Direct: The volume transacted under this category has increased over the previous year.
Transaction under the sub-category Traders & Direct' is a reflection of bilateral tendars for power
procurement invited by Utilities and is also dependent upon the seasonal variaions across all the
Utilities. During the year the direct bilateral transaction reduced 16% from 31.3 BU in FY 22-23 to
23.74 BU in FY 23-24 and transaction through traders increased by 37% from 33.8 BU in FY 22-23
to 46.2 BU in FY 23-24.

Regulatory update

Compliance to prescribed shareholding norms

CERC issued CERC (Power Market) Regulations, 2021 (‘PMR 2021") on 15.02.2021, vide Order dated
28.07.2021, the Commission notified its implementation from 15.08.2021. Regulation 15 of PMR 2021
prescribes shareholding structure to be maintained by the Exchange and provided time of one year to
comply to the noms.

PX¥IL has on 02.03.2023 submitted Petition no 95MP/2023 seaking grant of additional tims till 31.03.2025
to meet prescribed shareholding norms. CERC vide Order dated 20.11.2023 directed as under:

a. GMR Energy Limited was permitied to hold shareholding up to 25%

b. Shareholders NSE Investments Limited (‘"NSEIL"), National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange
Limitad {'NCDEX") and West Bangal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (WBSEDCL') to
align ownership structure till 30.09.2024

c.  PXIL to submil status report till 31.12.2023 in the matier

PXIL vide affidavit dated 22,12.2023 submitied status report to CERC, later based on share sale transaction
exacuted by NCDEX with new investor, the same was reported 1o CERC.

Qutlook for FY 2024-25 and beyond
a) Physical segment

The Powar markets in the country had not seen much change over the last ten years since exchange
operations were launched in 2008. Few, Policy, and regulatory developments have been iniliated
towards broadening and deepening of the markats.

a) MOP repon titled ‘Development of Electricity Market in India’

The Minisiry of Power had constituted a group comgrising of representatives from MOP, MNRE,
CEA, CERA, Grid-India and few state entities vis. MSEDCL, MP Power and TANGEDCO for
submitting a report on 'Development of Electricity Market in India’.

+  The objective was to review the issues faced in the electricity markets at present, identify
the required interventions for implementation and draw up a roadmap for the future. The
report identified key issues to be addressed in the redesign of the Indian alactricity market,
e.q., dominance of inflexible kong-term contracts, resource adequacy planning, reliance
on sall-scheduling, increasing share of renewables in the overall energy mix, slectricity
markets 1o integrate renewables and firmness in reserves for ancillary Services

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED T ’
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«  The report attempts to define a range of interventions with associated timeframes and
requiraments to enable efficient, optimal and reliable market operations, with time-bound
implementation of different measures resulting in introduction of Capacity Contracts,
S-minute scheduling and settlement, market based mechanism for secondary reserves,
Security Constraint Economic Dispatch (SCED) with unit commitment on D-1/D-3 for ISGS
plants, Aggregation of Demand response, implementation of MBED and introduction of
financial preducts for hedging of price volatility in spot markets

The implementation of recommendations made in the report will have an instrumental role in
acceleraling India’s energy transition by enabling smooth integration of renewable energy into
the grid. The inefficiency and inflexibility of long-term PPAs have been recognized and migration
to new Contract structure will deepen exchange market and enable efficiency in alectricity
procurament and lead 1o establishment of efficient, optimal and reliable market framowork.

General Network Access Regulations

= CERC vide notification dated 7th June 2022 issued the ‘Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Connectivity and General Network Access to the inter-State Transmission
System) Regulations, 2022° ('GNA Regulation’)

. The CERC (Open access in inter-State transmission) Regulations, 2008 and CERC
(Grant of Connectivity, Long-term Access and Medium-term Open Access in inter-State
Transmission and redated matters) Regulations, 2009 are proposed to be subsumed in
General Network Access Regulations. The other major changes effecting transactions on
Exchange platform are;

=  Tenure of Open access shall be from one time block and up to Eleven (11) months
Ahead and the same is termed as ‘Temporary-GNA' ('T-GNA')

«  Application for advance scheduling can be submitted as late as three (3) days prior
1o start of delivery

. Approval of application shall follow ‘First-come-First-serve’ principle

=  Approval of application shall be done latest by 'D+1" considering submission of
application day as ‘D’

+  Transmission charge shall be paid prior to start of delivery, one month's changes

shall be paid a1 a tima, for subsequent months the charges are to be paid on rolling
basis, with cne-month charges to be paid in advanca

*  Hevision in Temporary-GNA shall be allowed only if T-GNA is more than one month

Later vide Order dated 09.10.2022, CERG notified implementation of Connectivity
provisions, the T-GMA provisions are likely to be notified shortly for implementation and
vide nofification dated 03.08.2023 notified implementation of ‘T-GMA" from 01.10.2023.

The GNA Regulation is aimed 1o advance 1o a market friendly approach with provision related to
transmission connectivity, deemed GNA for State and rule-based allocation to T-GNA grantess
leading to optimal utilisation of transmission capacity under different contracting structures in a
fair and transparent manngr. Such measures will trigger deepening of power markets in country.
Pilot phase of Market Cowpling

CERC Order in Petition no 1/SM2024 dated 06.02.2024, outlined directives for
implementation of shadow pilot on power system and cost optimisation through market

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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ing. The key excerpts of the Order baing:

CERG directed GRID-India as under

To develop within two months from the date of this Order, the necessary software
as required for running the shadow pilot for coupling of ATM of the three power
exchanges as well as coupling of RTM & SCED, and for coupling of DAM of the three
powar exchanges. The software so developed should be scalable for running the
shadow pilot for coupling of DAM and SCUC, as and when decided by Commission

To Implement the shadow pilot of coupling on:
. RTM of the three power exchanges,
RTM and SCED and,

DAk of the three power exchanges,

For a period of four months after the development of the necessary software, based
on the directions

Share the operational experienca of running a shadow pilot in the form of a moenthiy
report during the pericd of four months and a feedback report at the end of the four-
month period.

On conclusion of shadow pilot, CERC is expected to issue draft Regulation for
implementation of Market Coupling. Implementation of market coupling would address
challenges of liquidity faced in DAM and RTM due fo modification in market design of

thesa

two Contracts. On implementation, since marke! coupling operator would coliect

bids received from multiple power exchanges and discover single uniform price for all
exchanges.

b)

Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) Market

Auctions in REC segment is hedd twice in a month, i.e. 2nd Wednesday and last Wednesday of the
month. CERC issued CERC (Terms and Conditions for Renewable Energy Cerificates for Renawable
Energy Generation) Regulations, 2022 ("REC Regulations 2022') on 05.05.2022. Later vide Order
dated 31.10.2022 it notified implementation of REC Regulations 2022 from 05.12.2022.

A comparison of salient features of REC Regulations 2022 vis-a-vis AEC Regulations 2010 is:

S.MNo.| Particular | REC Regulation 2010 REC Regulations, 2022
. Valid unil redeemed
1 vggﬂﬁ.m L,E“ E,m”mm date ol iExinguishes when Obligated entities purchase
o meat RPO compliance)
I Abolished the concept of Price band
2 |Price band :n:-:ﬂlﬂFcEHEmm Demand -Supply dynamics fo decide the
transachion price
3 z;?ﬁaw . ilﬁmlar was not : Provides multipliers to encourage invesimants in
technologies | provided new technologies
; Eligible entities allowed 1o sell to Tradin
it |i:aan|l-|mﬂm J
Bilateral _ ;
4 | iansaction | Transactions mandated | Discoms, Open access consumers and Caplive
exclusively on Power power plants allowed 1o purchase bilaterally from
Exchanges Trading licensees

POWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED
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c)

Against the said REC regulations order few associations representing Sellers of the Renewable
Energy Cartificates filed a writ petition in High Court of Delhi pleading to set aside its implementation
and allow REC trading as per REC Regulations 2010, the Judgement is awaited in the matter.

The REC market share for the current financial year has increased to 34%, the market size increased
frorm 81,61,604 RECs in FY 22-23 to 1,16,57 680 RECs in FY 23-24.

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24
Market size (no of certificates in lacs) 81.6 116.58
REC volume of PXIL (no of certificates in lacs) 21.01 39.85
|Market share of PXIL 26% 34%

The CERC Order for increasing the frequency of REC frading session to twice in a month and
allowing fungibility of different types of RECs has led to increased flexibility. With remaval of price
band, the clearing price reflects the demand-supply dynamics, during the last session of FY 23-24
the clearing price at ‘PRATYAY" platform was Rs, 270/REC,

Market Chearing Price discovered in each session

1200
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On implementation of REC Regulations 2022, nearly 2285 lacs RECs were transacted bilaterally
through Trading licensees during the year. In the ensuing year i.e. FY 2024-25, post issuance of
Judgement by Delhi High Court and on issuance of CERC Order on Petition, the competition posed
through bilateral transaction accounted by Traders, is expected to be mitigated by introduction of
Reverse Auction Contract, Ferward Auction Contract and Continuous matching mechanism in REC
sagment for benefit of market paricipants.

Energy Efficiency Services Market

Hon'ble CERC vide notification dated 27th May 2016 has issued the Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Terms and Conditions for Dealing in Energy Savings Certificates) Regulations, 2016.
The regulations dafine a framework for fransaction in Energy Savings Cenificates (ESCaens) throwgh
power exchanges. CERC on 15th feb-2017 approved the detailed procedure for dealing in ESCerts
at the power exchanges, the detailed procedure has specified trading in ESCerts to be held on every
Tuesday of the week.

BEE vide notification dated 22.10.2021 notified commencement in ESCert for PAT Cycle-il,
accordingly the first ESCert session was held on 26.10.2021. BEE vide notification dated 03.11.2021
announced pause in trading session for a peried of ane (1) month, subsequently the pause in trading
session was then extended till further notice by BEE. Further, the Commission issued CERC (Tems
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and Conditions for Dealing in Energy Savings Certificates) (First Amendment) Regulations, 2022,
[ESCERTS Amendment Regulations 2022) that provides for introduction of fleor price for transacting
in ESCERTS. BEE vide notification dated 06.02.2023 directed thal transaction in ESCerls resume
from 14.02.2023, later, vide notification dated 27.09.2023, BEE informed all DCs regarding close of

compliance window by 17.10.2023 for PAT Cycle-Il.
During the year the nearty 12.52 lacs ESCerts were transacted resulting in market share of nearly 17%

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24
Market size (no of certificates) 3,234,039 12,52,129
ESCert volume of PXIL (no of certificates) 1,098,572 2,18,248
Market share of PXIL 32.7% 17.3%

Thus, in PAT Cycle |l, the total number of ESCerts transacted at ‘PRATYAY" platform is 3.41 lacs,
the year wise volume transacted in PAT Cycle-l| is:

d)

POWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED

Particulars FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24
Market size (no of cerificatas) 2,99 517 3,34939 12,52,129
ESCert volume of PXIL {no of cerificates) 13,375 1,09,572 2,18,248
Market share of PXIL 4.5% 32.7% 17.3% |

BEE has vide notification Office Memorandurn dated 18.03.2024 informed commencement in
transaction from 09.04.2024 for Designaled Consumers o meel energy efficiency targets prescribed
under PAT Cycle-lil. Later vide Office Memorandum dated 18.04.2024 BEE directed that Designated
Consumers of PAT Cycle-l and Il are allowed (o transact in ESCers along with upcoming trading
session of PAT Cycle-lil 1o meet their compliance reguiremsant.

Carbon Credit Trading Schemea

It is submitted that Government of india has announced five national goals in COP-26 regarding its
Energy Transition:

a. Achieving a reduction in amission intensity by 45% compared 1o 2005 level by 2030

Achieve Carbon Neutrality by 2070

Achieve 50% of power generation capacity from non-fossil fuels

500 GW of non-fossil fuel based capacity

Reduction of 1 Billion tonnes of carbon dicxdde emissions by the year 2030

R L

The notification of Energy Conservation (Amendment) Act 2022 provides a legal framework for
functioning of Carbon market in India. MOP vide nofification dated 28.06.2023 issued the Carbon
Credit Trading Scheme ("\CCTS). CCTS provides for development of instifutional framework and
mechanism for functioning of the Indian Carbon Credit Markat.

The scheme provides for setling up of National Steering Committee for Indian Carbon Market,
compriging of stakeholders from different Ministries, the BEE is designated as "Administralor’, CERC
is designated as ‘Regulator’, GRID-INDIA shall pperate the ‘Registry” of Indian Carbon Market and
Power exchanges operaling under provisions of PMRA 2021 are recognised as ‘Market platform’ for
transaction in Carbon Credit.

1)
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It is proposed that the Indian Carbon Market may enable fungibility for transacting in Carbon Credit,

(:

ESCer and REC.
SHARE CAPITAL
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The Authorized Share Capital of your Company is Rs. 120,00,00,000 (Rs 120 crores) divided into:
(a) Equity Share Capital - Rs. 100,00,00,000 (10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
(b} Preference Share Capital - Rs. 20,00,00,000 (2,00,00.000 OCRPS - 10% Cumulative of Rs.10/-

each)

The Issued, Subscribed and Pald-up Equity Share Capital of your Company s Rs. 584700500/

(5,84,70,050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid-up)

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted

employes stock options nor isswed Sweat Equity Shares.
BUYBACK OF SHARES

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company has not announced any scheme of buy
back of its shares. Accordingly, the requirement as to disclosures of reason for fallure 1o complete the
buyback within the time specified under Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013 does nat apply.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(As in lacs)
F.Y 2023-24 F.¥ 2022-23
o (ind AS) (Ind AS)

Total Income during the year 6,321.93 5.550.28
Total Expenditure 2978.76 2.281.13
Prafit before Finance Cost, Depreciation, Tax, Prior period items 334317 3.269.15
Depreciation & Amortization 33757 30a.62
Finance Cost 47.50 45.69
Profit before Tas 2.958.00 2.913.84
Provision for Taxation T47.81 T52.80
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 221019 2,161.04
COther Comprehensive Income {11.69) 5.16
Balance brought forward from previous yaar 1,143.88 {1,022.22)
Balance to be carried forward 334248 1,143.89

There has not bean any change in the nature of business of your Company during the financial year 2023-24.
DIVIDEND

Your Direclor's are pleased to recommend a final Dividend of ¥ 1.5% per equity share of face value of
¥ 10 each for the year ended 31* March 2024. The Final Dividend, subject 1o the approval of Members at
the Annual General Meeting will be paid within the time period stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013
{subject to deduction of Tax at sourca).

POWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Mo amount is proposed o be fransferred fo the General Reserve out of the amount available for
appropriations.

DETAILS/CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL {"KMP")

The details/changes in Directors’ & KMF as on 315t March, 2024:

*g;_ ‘Mame of Director & KMP Designation Category

1 [*Mr. Vijay Kumar Aggarwal Indepandeant Director, Chairman Independent

2 | Mr. Yatrik Vin Director Promoter Category Non-Executive

3 | Mr. Atul Roongla Director Promoter Category Non-Executive

4 |"“Mr. Harish Ahuja Director Promoter Category Mon-Executive

5 | """Mr. Avinash Mohan Director Promoter Category Men-Executive

6 |"#Dr. Kirit Parikh Independent Director Independent

7 |Mr, Pramod Kumar Vaishya Indepandent Director Indepandant

8 |"##Mr. Ashok Sethd Indepandant Directar Indepandan

8 | “&#aMr. Satyajit Ganguly Managing Diractor & Chief Executive

Executive Officer

10 | Mr. Ashok Prusty Director Sharehoider Category Non-Executive

11 | #&Mr. Despak Lad Independant Director Independant

12 | #¥kir. Rajiv Ranjan Mishra independent Director | Independent

13 | Mr. Shekhar Rao Chief Financial Officer Executive
(Whaole-time KMP)

14 | Mr, Sunil Hingwani Company Secretary Executive
(Whale-time KMP)

*Chairrman of the Company up to 315t March 2024 and the Second term as Independent Director Completed
an 315t March, 2024,

** Appointed as Non-Executive Director, Promater Director Category w.e.f 18th May, 2023

"**Appainted as Non-Executive Director, Promoter Director Category w.e.f 08th August, 2023

*# Second term as Independant Director Completed on 31st March, 2024,

“## Appainted as Chairman of the Company w.e.f 015t April, 2024

“#E# Appointed as Managing Director & CEQ w_ef 27th June, 2023,

## Appointed as Independent Director w.e.f 01st April, 2024,

Appointments/ Re-appointments/Resignations

- The Board in its Meeting held on 21* April, 2023 on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, apposnted Mr. Satyajit Ganguly (DIN:06961418) as a Managing Director & CEO for a
pericd of 3 years w.al 277 June, 2023. At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company
held on 12" September, 2023, the Members had approved appointment of Mr. Satyajit Ganguly
(DIN:06961418) as a Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

*  The Board in its Meeting held on 18th May, 2023 on recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr. Harish Ahuja (DIN: 07606661) as Additional Director
(Promoter's Director representing NSE Invesiments Limited. At the 15th Annual General Meeting

FPOWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED 13’
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(AGM) held on 12th Septembar, 2023, the Members had approved appointment of Mr. Harish
Ahuja as Director of the Company,

* The Board in its Meating held on 0Bth August, 2023 on recommendation of Nomination and
Remunaration Committes, appointed Mr. Avinash Maohan (DIM: 10216884} as Additional Director
(Promoter's Director reprasenting National Commodity & Derivatives Exchange Limited. At the
15th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 12th September, 2023, the Members had approved
appaintment of Mr. Avinash Mohan as Director of the Company.

* The Board in its meeting held on 19th March 2024, on recommendation of Momination and
Remuneration Commitiee, appointed Mr. Deepak Lad (DIN :01970020) and Mr. Rajiv Ranjan
Mishra (DIN:06480792) as Additional Director (Non-Exacutive, Independeant Director Category) w.a.f
Q1st April 2024 and who will hold the office till the conclusion of the 16th Annual General Meeting
subject to approval by the Members, The Board recommends seeking consent of its Members al the
ensuing Annual General Meeting for approving Appointment of Mr, Deepak Lad (DIN 01970020} and
Mr. Rajiv Aanjan Mishra (DIN:0G480792), Independent Directors Category for a lerm uptc 3 (three)
consacutive years w.e.f 01.04.2024 10 31.03.2027.

Retire by Rotation

Ag per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in ferms of the Memorandum and Aricles of
Association of the Company, Mr, Atul Roongta (DIMN:O72TB061) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-appointimeant. Tha Board recommends his re-appaintment.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT YVENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joinl ventures or associale Companies.
DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companias
Act, 2013 and as such no amounts, on account of principal andior interest on public deposits, weara
outstanding as on the dale of the Balance Sheet. Accordingly, the requirement to fumnish details relating to
deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 does nol arise.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market) Regulations, 2021 ('PMR’), had been naotified
w.a.l 15th August, 2021 and compliances regarding certain regulations of PMR were directed to be filed
within six months from the date of notification, Accordingly, PXIL filed the petition on 17th December, 2021
and hearings were conducted on the said matter and CERC Onder was reserved on the said matier. Later
vide CERC Order dated 26th April, 2022 wherein CERC provided additional time fill 31,03.2023 1o meet the
Shareholding pattern as prescribed under ('PMR'). In the manth of March 2023, PXIL had filed the petition
seeking extension for meeting the shareholding norms as prescribed wnder Regulations 15 of Power
Market Regulations, 2021. On 20th November, 2023 CERC had grant time till 30th Seplember, 2024 to
align the shareholding pattemn in accordance with Regulation 15 of CERC (Power Market) Regulations
2021,

The Metwarth of the Company as on 3151 March, 2024 is Rs. 91.85 Crs.

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return in the prescribed format is available on the
website of the Exchange at the link:

wiwwpowerexindia.inPages/Discover/Govermnance. himl/

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

I.  Pursuant to Section 134 {5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

{a) In the preparation of the annual accounis for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the
applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with the proper explanation relating
to material departures, if any;

(b} The Directors had selectad such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 50 as 10 give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year i.e. 315t March, 2024 and of
the Profit of the Company for that year;

{c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assals of the Company and for praventing and detecting fraud and other imegularities.

id} The Direclors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such syslems are adequate and were operating effectively.

Il.  Your Directors confirm that the applicable Secretarial Standards Compliances under Section 118(10)
of Companies Act, 2013 are being adherad by the company in a timely manner.
AMMUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has camad out an annual evaluation of
its own performance and that of its commiltees as well as perdformance of the Direclors individually.

The evaluation of all the Directors was conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the
Eoard which was composed of the following key areas:

i.  Aftendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

ii.  Quality of contribution to Board deliberations

. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management

v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests

Mo Independent Direcior participated in his own performance evaluation. The Direclors have expressed
their satisfaction with the evalualion process,

The parformance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole was carried out
by the Independent Directors in their meeting held on 09th March, 2024, The perdormance evaluation of
the Chalman of the Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As par tha requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed Mr, Pramod Kumar
Vaishya(DIN: 00144142) Mr. Ashok Sethi (DIN: 01741911), Mr. Deepak Lad (DIN: 01870020) and Mr. Rajiv
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Rajan Mishra (DIN: D64B0792)as Independent Directors on its Board basaed on the declaration that they
meat criteria of Independence. Further, every Independent Director shall at the first meeting of the Board
In every financial year or whenever there s a change in the circumstances which may affect his status as
an Independent Director give a declaration that he meats the criteria of Independence. Accordingly, the
above Independent Directors have given Declarations of Independence in the first meeting of the Board of
the Company held on 171h May, 2024,

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2024, & (Six) meetings of the Board of Direclors were held
as detailed below:

Directors who atended Date of Board Meetings
the Meeting 21/04/2023 | 18/05/2023 | 08/08/2023 | 07/11/2023 | O7M212024 | 190032024
Mr, Vijay Kumar Aggarwal Yas Yas Yas Yes ¥es Yes
Mr. Yatrik Vin Yos Yas Yes Yes Mot Atiended Yas
Mr. Al Roongta Yes Yes Yoz Yes Yes Yes
Mr, P K Vaishya Yes Yes Yes Yes Yos Yos
Mr. Ashok Sethi Yas Yes Yes Yes Yes Yoz
Dir, Kiril Parikh fas Yas Yes fes ¥es Yes
Mr. Ashok Kurnar Prusty Yas Yas s Yes Yes Mot Attendad
Mr. Harish Ahuja MNA MA Yes Mot Attended Yes Mot Attendad
Mr. Avinash Mohan h& M WA Yes Yes Yas
Mr, Satyajil Ganguly MA MA Yas Yes Yas Yos
STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Auwdit and Auditors) Rules
2014, M's K S Aiyar & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (FRN 100186W) were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of your Company for a period of 5 continuous years i.e. from the conclusion of 15th
AGM fill the conclusion of 20th AGM, subject to ratification by the members at every AGM of the Company.

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 notified on May 07, 2018 by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the appointmant of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every AGM. Accordingly, no
proposal for ratification of appaintment of M's K 5 Aiyar & Co Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors
of the Company will be placed at ensuing AGM,

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Bules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. M L Bhatia &
Associates,Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report given by the Secratarial Auditor is appended 1o this report as Annexure 1.
COMMENTS ON AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations or disclaimers made by Mis, K S Aiyar & Co. Statutory Auditors,
im their report and by Ms. N L Bhatia & Associates, Practicing Company Secretanes in their Secratarial
Audit,

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not reporied any

incidant of fraud 1o the Audit Committee of the Company.
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19. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Some of the Important Committees of the Board are as follows:
Sr. | Name of the Objective / Purpose Headed by
Mo Committee .
¥ Audit Commatiea | The objective of the Committes is oversight Promater Mominaa
of the Company’s financial reporting procass Direcior
and disciosure of s financial information 1o
ansure that the inancial statements are corract,
sulficsent and cradible.
2 Nomination & The objective of the said Committee is inter-| Independent Direclor
Remuneration | alia to determine the terms and conditions
Committea of appointment, re- appointment, fixing of
remuneration edc. of the Directors and Senior
Management of the Company.
3 Corporate Social | | The objective of the said committee is iferaba)  Independent Direcior
Responsibility o formulate and recommend o Board a CSR
Commities policy indicating activities to be undartaken by
company, to recommend amount of expenditure
to be incurred, to monitor implementation of
framewark of CSH policy.
4 | Market Surveillance |The objective of the said Committee is infer-| Independent Director
Commitiee alia to analyze, monitor, recommend, suggest,
implement, comment etc,, on the bidding patiern
& transactions of various market participants on
the Exchange platiorm,
5 | Risk Assessmenl |The objective of the sald Committee is inter-| Independent Director
and Management | aliz to stipulate risk containmen! measures and
Committes to monitor adherence of the same at regular
intersaks.
6 | SGF Management |The objective of the said Committee is infer-| Independent Director
Committee (SGF) | atia 1o supervise / oversee the management of
Settlerment Guarantee Fund collected by the
[ Exchange from its Members.

The Audit Committea comprises of the following Directors viz. Mr. Yatrik Vin (DIN: 07662795) (Chairman
of the Commitiee — Promaoter (NSE-IL) Nominee Director), Mr. Atul Roongta (DIN: 07TB78081)- (Membaer
- Promotar Nominee (NCDEX) Derector), Mr. Pramod Kumar Vaishya (DIN:00144142) (Member —
Independeant Director) and Mr. Ashok Sethi (DIN: 0174191 1) (Member - independent Director) [Appainted
as Member w.e.! 01st April, 2024].A0 the Members of the Committee possess strong accounting and
financial management knowledge. The Company Secretary is the Secretary 1o the Committes, The Terms
of Reference of the Audit Commitiee are in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

Tha Nomination & Remunaration Committea (NRC) comprises of the following Directors viz. Mr. Pramod
Kumar Vaishya (DIN:00144142) (Chairman of the Committee - Independent Director), Mr. Yatrik Vin{DIN:
07662795) (Member - Promoter Nominee Director), Mr. Atul Roongta (DIN: 07878061 )-(Member - Promoter

17)
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Mominee Director) and Mr. Ashok Sethi (DIN: 01741911) (Member - Independent Director) [Appointed as
Member w.e.1 015t April, 2024]. The Terms of Referance of the Momination and Remuneration Commitiee
are in accordance with the requirements of the Companias Act, 2013,

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committes (CSA) comprises of the following Directors viz. Mr. Ashok
Sethi (DIN: 01741911) (Member — Independent Director) (Chairman of the Committee — Independent
Director) [Appointed as Chairman of the said Committee w.ed 018t April, 2024, Mr. Yatrik Vin (DIN:
0Y662795) (Member — Promoter Nominea Direcior), Mr. Atul Roongla (DIN: 07878061} (Member —
Promater Nominae Director), Mr. Satyajit Ganguly (DIN: 06961418){Member — Managing Director & CED).
Thie Temms of Relerence ol the Comorate Social Responsibility Commitiee are in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTIOM 188 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Your Company has not given any loan, guaraniee or provided any security in connection with the loan or
made any imvesiments undar Section 186 of tha Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of confracts or arrangements entered into by your Company with related parties have been
disclosed in Form ADC-2 and is atlached henewith as Annexure 2 1o this Report.

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS” APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Your Company has adopted a Momination and Remuneration Policy for Appointment and Remuneration
of the Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel. The paolicy includes criteria for determining
qualifications, positive atiributes, independence of a Director and other matiers provided under Section
178 (3} of the Companies Acl, 2013. The policy was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 27th March, 2015 and in the said Financial Year an amendmeant was made in NRC Policy and the said
was approved in the Board Meeting dated 16th February, 2023. The said policy Is appended as Annexure
3 to this Report. The broad terms & conditions of the Appointment of Independant Direciors are available
on the website of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Market) Regulations, 2021 {'PMR’), had been notified
w.e.f 15th August, 2021 and compliances regarding certain regulations of PMR were directed 10 be filed
within six months from the date of notification. Accordingly, PXIL filed the petition on 17th December,
2021 and hearings were conductad on the said matter and CERC Order was reserved on the said matter.
Later vide CERC Order dated 26th April, 2022 wherein CERC provided additional time till 31.03.2023 to
meeat the Shargholding pattern as prescribad under ("PMR'). In the month of March 2023, PXIL had filed
the petition seeking exiension for meeting the sharehalding norms as prescrbed under Regulations 15
of Power Market Begulations, 2021. On 20th November, 2023 CERC had grant time tll 30th September,
2024 1o align the shareholding pattern in accordance with Regulation 15 of CERC (Power Market)
Reguiations 2021,

The Metwarth of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs. 91.89 Crs.
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24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHAMGE

27T,

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange eamings and outgo in
terms of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are as follows:

A) Conservation of energy: MIL
B) Technology Absorption: MIL
C) Foreign exchange earnings and Oufgo: Foraign Exchange eamings

Dwring the Financial Year 2023-24 were Bs. "NIL' and the Foreign Exchange outgo for the same pericd
was Rs, 10,57,164/-

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

CERC had notified Power Market Regulations 2021 w.e.f 15th August, 2021 (Erstwhile CERC, PMR 2010).
Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 26 (2) of the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power
Market) Regulations, 2021 (Erstwhile CERC PMR 2010}, the Company has constituted a Risk Management
Committea {'AMC’), a sub-commitiee of the Board and the nomenclature of the said Committee was
changed from Risk Management Committee to Risk Assessment and Management Committes (RAMC),
which reviews the nsk management framework and protess of the Company at least twice each year. The
RAMC stipulates risk containment measures and alsc monitors the adherence of the same on a regular
basis. The Committee is headed by an Independent Director of the Board,

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, menitor and mitigate material risks o key
business objectives. Major risks identified by the business are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuing basis.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Frohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Intemnal
Complaints Committee ('ICC") has been set up by your Company 1o redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment, All employees are coverad under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year
2023-24

No. of complaints received |NIL

Mo. of complaints disposed off Mot Applicable

No. of cases pending for more than 90 days Nat Applicable )

Mo. of Workshops or awareness programs against | 1 Awareness Programs was conducted &uring the |
sexual harassment carmied ouf said period, .
Mature of action taken by the employer Not Applicabie i

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In terms of Section 135 of the Act, every company having Met worth of Rupees Five Hundred Crore or more
or Tumover of Aupees One thousand Crore or more or a Net Profit of Rupees Five Crore or more during
immediately preceding Financial Year shall Constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committes of
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ther Board consisting of three or more Directors out of which at least one Director shall be an Independent
Director. All such companies are required to spend at least 2% of the average net profit of their three (3)
immediately preceding financial year on CSR activities. During the year the company is not required to
spend any amount on CSR activities in view of its Accumulated Losses as per Saction 198 of Companies
Act, 2013, The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committea (CSA). The Details on CSR have been briefly discussed in Annexure 4 forming pan of the
Direciors Report.

28. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERMAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has in place adeqguate internal financial controls commensurate with the nature of is
business and size and complaxity of its operations. The controls are adequate for ensuring the arderly and
afficient conduct of the business including the safeguarding of assets, Proper policies, guidelines, checklists
and other proceduras are laid down for this purpose. The intermnal control system has been designed to
ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial and other siatemanis and
for maintaining accountability of the assets. These confrols are independently reviewed by the Internal
Auditors of the Company including conducting the routineg internal audit by them wheraby the awdil activity
embeds validation / review of the controls to establish their adequacy and effectiveness. Besides the
above, the Intemal Auditors and a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries review the compliances by the
Company with respect to various laws, nules, regulations etc, as applicable to the Company on a quarierly
basis. The observations, if any, of the Intemal Audit, and the compliance report issued by the firm of
Practicing Company Secretaries are also presented by them to the Audit Commitles avery guarer,

The Statutory Auditors had conducted a review of Intermal Financial Contrals including Entity Level
Controls, IT general controls; Risk Control matrix and process walk through on a sample basis as per the
guidelines issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

29, HUMAN RESOURCE ("HR')

Employees are considered the most vital and valuable asset of the Organization. Your Company has
focused on the tenets of open and transparent communication, employee policy strengthening and
engagement which were some of the key focus areas of human resource development.

During the FY 2023-24, your Company endeavored to uphold the positive working environment that was
brought about in the previous years:

+  The focus on HR compliance continued to remain siringant during the year,
* Ewvenis have bean organized during the year 50 as o maintam a lively aimosphene in Ihe organization.

The retationship with employees remained cordial. Your Directors would like to place their appreciation for
the contribution made by all the employees of the Company.

30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Farticulars of employee remuneration as required under provisions of Rule 5{2) and rule S(3) of the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms parl of this
report. In terms of the provisions of section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report is being sent 1o members
excluding the aforamentionad information. Any mamber interested in obtaining such information may write

to the Company Secratary of the Company.
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OTHER INFORMATION

. During the financial year under review, maintenance of cost records as specified by the Ceniral
Government under sub- section (1)of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to

the Company.

ii. Proceeding under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 The Company has neither made any
application nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Gode, 2016 (TIBC
Code”) during the Financial Year and doas not have any proceadings ralated 1o IBC Codea,

iii. During the financial year under review disclosure w.r.t. details of diference between amount of the
valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the
Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereol, is nol applicable.

32. ACKMNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued co-operation,
guidandca, support and assistance received from Shareholders and Promaters.

The Board also wishes to place on record their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and support
extended by the Government of India, the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission, various government
departments / agencies, and all other stakeholders.,

On behalf of the Board
For Power Exchange India Limited
Date : 17.05.2024
Place ;. Mumbal
fAshok Sethi
Chairman
(DM 1 741911)
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Annexure 1
FORM NO. MR - 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Saction 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 8 of the Companias (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personned) Ruwles, 2014]

Ta,
The Members,
Power Exchange Indla Limited

We have conducted the Secretaral Audit of the compliance of applicable statuiory provisions and the
adherance to good corporate practices by Power Exchange India Limited (here in after called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reascnable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and exprassing our opinion thareon.

Based on our verfication of the Company's books, papers, minule books, forms and retums filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions lsted
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 1o the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporing made herginafier;

We have examinad the books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the Financial Year ended from 315t March, 2024 according 1o the provisions of;

{il The Companies Acl, 2013 (“the Act™) and ihe Rules made thereundar;

(il The Ceniral Electricity Regulaiory Commission (Power Marke!) Regulations, 2021 (w.ef 15th August,
2021)

(i} The Securities Coniracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; not applicable
to the Company during the financial year

{iv)] Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 ("FEMA”) and the rules and regulations made thersunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Invesiment, overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Bormowings:
nol applicable to the Company during the financlal year

(vl The Depositones Act, 1936 and the Regulation and Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

{vi] Other Laws applicabla 1o the Company;as per “Annexure A"

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
* Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (1C3I).
. MCA Motification for holding Meetings through VC / OVAM,

Dwring the pericd under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Execulive
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Directars, Mon-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

We further report that during the period under review the board of direciors of the company al their meeting
held on 18th March, 2024 has approved the appointmeant of Mr. Deepak Lad (DIN No.: 01970020) and Mr. Rajiv
Rajan Mishra (DIN No.: 06480792) as additional Independent Director on the Board of Power Exchange India
Limited w.e.f 015t April, 2024,

Adequate notice is given to all directors 1o schedule the Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings. Agenda
and detailed notles on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seaking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meating.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’' views are caplured and recorded as part of

the minutes. All the decisions have been taken unanimously in Board Meetings and no dissent recorded in Board
and General Meating.

We further report that; a meeting of the Independent Direclors has been held on 0%th March, 2024 for
parformance evaluation of the Chairman, Non-Independent directors and the Board as a whole for the Financial
Year 2023-24,

We further report that; there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to maonitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations
and Guidelines,

We further report that; during the audit period the Company has taken lollowing actions having a major bearing
on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referrad laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, elc.:

PXIL has submitted Pefition no $5/MP/2023 seeking grant of additional time to meeting prescribed shareholding
norms as required under CERC (Power Market), Regulations, 2021, CERC vide Order dated 20.11.2023 has
granted additional time till 30.09.2024 to meet prascribed shareholding norms,

We further report that;during the audit period the Company has taken following actions having a major bearing
on the company's affairs:

i- Petition-1: Patition with CERC to introduce High Price Day Ahead Market (HP-DAM) Contract

CERC Vide Order dated 11.04.2023, CERC approved introduction of HP-DAM Contract and was introduced
tharaaltar.

il. Petition-2: Petition with CERC to introduce Tertiary Reserve Ancillary Services (TRAS) Contracts

CERC vide Cvrder dated 27.04 2023 approved infroduction of Day Ahead AS Market and Real Time AS
Market Contracts in TRAS segment and the same was introduced thereafter.

iil.  Petition-3: Petition with CERC seeking approval to introduce High Price bilateral contracts in contingency
and term ahead segments.

PXIL submitted Petition vide Affidavit dated 03.05.2023, two rounds of hearing were held on 08.06.2023
and 23.08.2023.

Later vide Order dated 21.09.2023, CERC approved introduction of High Price Bilateral transactions in
Contingency and Term Ahead segments and the same was introduced thereafter,

. Petition-4: Petition with CERC seeking approval to introduce new Contracts in REC segment under
pravisions of REC Regulation 2022
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Two hearing in the matier were held on in the matter on 07.02.2023 and 21.03.2023, during hearing on
21.03.2023, CERC reserved Order in the matier.

Later vide Order dated 08.10.2023, CERC gave two directives:

a Conduct one more auction session on 2nd Wednesday of the month in addition 1o existing last
Wednesday of the manth

b.  Tofile separate Petition seeking approval to introduce new Confracts in REC segment
Petition-5: Petition with CERC seeking approval 1o introduce new Contracts in REC segment.

PXIL submitted Petition vide Affidavit dated 22.12.2023 seeking approval 1o introduce single sided reverse
auction contract, single sided forward auction confract and continuous matching mechanism in REC

sagment.

CERC has conducted two rounds of hearings in the matter, e.g. 29.01.2024 and 20.03.2024, the third
hearing in the matier is now scheduled on 21,06 2024,

Petition-6: Peatition with CERC seeking approval to increase delivery duration in TAM Contracts up to
11-months ahead under provision of Temporary — General Network Access (T-GNA')

PXIL submitted Petition vide Affidavit dated 22.12.2023 seeking approval to increase delivery duration of
Term Ahead Confracts from existing 90 days /12 weeks /3 months up to 11 months as provided in T-GMNA
undar provision of General Network Access Regulations 2022

Two rounds of hearing were in held in the matter, .g. on 19.02.2024 and 18.03.2024, during hearing held
on 18.03.2024, CERC reserved Order in the matter.

Petition-7: Petition with seeking approval of transaction fee under provision of PMR 2021

PXIL submitted Petition no 178/MP/2022 to CERC saeking approval for transaction fee o be charged from
participants transacting at 'PRATYAY' system,

CERC vide Order dated 05.04.2023 approved transactlion fee up to 2 paise / kWh on cleared quantum
from each Buyer and Sefler

Petition-B: Petition seeking grant of additional time of 2 years to comply with shareholding norms
prescribed at Regulation 15 of PMR 2021

Petition submitted on 04.03.2023 seaking grant of additional time 1l 31.03.2025 to comply with shareholding
norms prescribed in Regulation 15 of PMA 2021,

CERC vide Order dated 20.11.2023 granted additional time till 30.09,.2024 1o align shareholding prescribed
in PMR 2021,

Patition-3; Pelition seeking approval 1o appoint Independent Direclors on Board of PXIL

Petition submitted vide affidavit dated 10.10.2023 under provisions of Regulation 17 of PMR 2021 seeking
approval to appoint Indapandant Directors on Board of PXIL

CERC vide Order dated 05.02.2024 accorded approval to proposal of PXIL for apposniment of Independent
Directors on Board of PXIL under provisions of Regulation 17 of PMR 2021

Petition=10: Petition seeking deferment of Temporary —General Network Access under General Network
Access Regulations 2022
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Petition submitted vide affidavit dated 19.09.2023 seeking deferment of Temporary — General Network
Access ('T-GNA’') under General Network Access Regulation 2022

CERC implemented T-GNA and CERC (Indian Electricity Grid Code) Regulations, 2023 from 01.10.2023.
Later vide Order dated 14.03.2024, CERC approved request for withdrawal of Petition.

Date: 17" May, 2024 For M/s N. L. Bhatla & Associates
Place: Mumbai Practising Company Secretaries
UIN: P1996MHO5S5800

PR No.: 700/2020

Bharat A. Upadhyay
Pariner

FCS: 5436

CP. No.: 4457

UDIN: FO05436F000388137
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Other applicable laws to the Company:

w
g

MName of the Act

The Income Tax Act, 1961

The Finance Act conceming Goods and Service Tax

The Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellanepus Provisions Act, 1952

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

Tha Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881

The Indian Contract Act, 1872

The Electricity Act, 2003

o o~ s W R =

The Notaries Act, 1932

The Maharaghira Stamp Act, 1958

-t
e

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

-
P

The Maharashira Labour Wealfare Fund Act, 1953

=
L

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

5
i

The Employees Pension Scheme, 1835

ke
(4]

The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986

=k
oh

The Employment Exchanges (Compulsery Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959

=&
=]

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1876

=&
52}

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

=k
e

The Bombay Shops and Establishments Act, 1948

The Emplovess’ State Insurance Act, 1948

The Maharashtra State Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings, and Employment Act, 1875

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970

I g e

The Gentral Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017

i)
L=

The Indian Stamp Act, 1829

&

The Copyright Act, 1957

1]
=1

The Code of Civil Procedura, 1908

Pk
231

The Asbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996

[
=

The Apprentices Act, 1961

8

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999

a
—

The Bye Laws, Rules and Business Rules of the Company

]
A=)

The Indian Penal Code, 1860

a3
=

The Mumbai Metropalitan Region Development Authority Act | 1974

5
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_Name of the Act

The CERC (Conduct of Business) Regulations, 1999

The CERC {Indian Electricity Grid Code) Regulation, 2023

The CERC GNA Regulations 2022 & The CERC (Indian Electricity Grid Code) Regulation, 2023

The CERC (Payment of Fees) Regulations, 2012

The CERC (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges & Losses) Regulations, 2020 (erstwhile
The CERC (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges & Losses) Regulations, 2010)

The CERC (Connectivity and General Network Access to the Inter-State Transmission System)
Regulations, 2022.

The CERC (Power Market) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile The CERC (Power Market) Regulations,
2010)

The Infarmation Technology Act, 2008

ala| | 8 EHE%E:%

The Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023
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To,

The Members

Power Exchange India Limited

Cur report of even date is to be read along with this tetter,

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company, Our
responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit.

2, We have followed the auditing standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretanes of India (IC3I)
and audit practices and processes as were appropriate o obtain reasonable assurance aboul the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 1o ensure
that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
have followed are aligned with Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company Sacretaries of India
{ICS1) provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

4,  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of Laws,
Rules and Regulations and happening of events elc.

5,  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, standards
is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the fulure viability of the Company nor the
efficacy or eflectiveness with which the Management has conductad the affairs of the Company.

Date: 17™ May, 2024 For M/s M. L. Bhatia & Associates
Place: Mumbai Practicing Company Secretaries
UIN: P1996MHOS5800

PR Mo,: 700/2020

Eharat R. Upadhyay
Pariner

FCS: 5436

CP. No.: 4457

UDIN: FOO5436F000388137
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Annexure 2
FORM NOQ. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Ac

counts) Rules, 2014).

Form for Disclosure of particulars of Contracts/Arrangements enterad into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including cerain arm's length transaction
under third proviso thereio,

1. Details of Contracts or Arrangemenis or Transactions at Arm's length basis.

Sr. No. Particulars Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of |M/is NSEIT Limited - Subsidiary of Investing
relatianship Company of which the Company is associate

b) Mature of  contracts/arrangements/| Contractfor Application supporand Development
transaction senvices for deiﬂ system PRATYAY.

c) Duration of tha contracts/arrangements/| The contract would be for the term of 3 years
transaction commeanced from 28.08.2021 till 27.08.2024

d) Salient terms of the contracts or|The confract value would be for the term of 3

afrangements or transaciion including the
value, if any

years wilh a yearly escalation of 5% and the
contract value for the first year would ba not
mora than Rs. 27 lacs per month.

MZEIT includes T man months of development
atfort and any additional effort would attract an |
additional bendad rate of 1.5 lakh per month.

)

Date of approval by the Board

f)

Since the said transactions are in he ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis.
These Contract/Arrangemant (including changes
therain), however, was approved by the Audit
Commitiea and Board at its meetings held on
18% May, 2021 respectively,

Amount paid aa_ﬂram, if any

INIL

2. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions atl Arm's length basis,
Sr. No. Particulars Details
al Name (s) of the related party & nature of | CXIO Technologies Pyt Ltd (Cloudxchange) is a
relationship subsidiary of NSEIT Ltd. While NSEIT Ltd is a
subsidiary of MSE Investmants Limitad and NSE
Investiments Lid is a sharehalder in PXIL
F) Mafura of contracts’arrangements’ | Contract for managing Infra hosted on Cloud by
transaction the Company.

i)

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/
fransaction

The contract would be for the term of 3 years
36 months commenced from 01.12.2021 il
30.11.2024.

POWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED
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Trarartarery Fowd S Hi

Sr. No.

il et R B

Salient terms of the contracls or
arrangements or fransaction including the
value, if any

1. Contract 1o be execuled for a period of 36
months with an amount equivalent to 18% of
AWS billing for the month,

2. The One-time charges (OTC) shall be paid
in advance along with the Purchase order or
duly signied Service Order Form (SOF).

3. The Recumring Charges (MRC) shall be paid
quarery in advance

4, Payment cycle will start on the day of deliv-
ery of the services.

5. Cloudxchange.io  will gtat  senvice
provisioning only after receiving all due
advance paymenis [one- fime charges) and
purchase order fduly signed SOF

B. Either parly can exit the confract, affer the
completion of 1 year, by giving 90 days'
notice. Or the confract can be modified by
muiual consent. Otherwise, the contract will
renew aulomatically after completion of one
year, for another year.

Date of approval by the Board

Since the said transactions are in the ordinary
course of business and on arm's length basis.
These  Contracts/Armangements  (including
changes therein), however, werge approved by
the Audit Committee and Board al its meelings
held on 09" Novembaer, 2021 respectively.

Amount paid as advances, if any

MIL

Date: May 17, 2024

Place: Mumbai

On behalf of the Board
For Power Exchange India Limited

Ashok Sethi
Chairman
{DIM: 01741911)
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Annexure 3
minat nd Rem tion
Preamble:

As per Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 [read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014] Power Exchange India Limited ('PXIL") is required to constitute a “Nomination
& Remuneration Committee™ ['NRC') consisting of three or more non-executive directors out of which not
less than one-half shall be Independent Directors and the Chairperson of the Company (whether executive
of non-exacutive) may be appainted as a member of the Committee but shall not chair such Commities.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors of PXIL has passed circular resolution on 17th June, 2014 constituting
the NRC in accordance with the above-mentionad provisions of the Act and Rules.

Sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Act requires the NRC 1o, inter-alia, recommend to the Board a policy
relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. Accordingly
a policy has been drafted in compliance with Section 178 of the Act read along with applicable rules therata
and the same is as follows:

Definitions:

1. ‘Company’ means “Power Exchange India Limited".

2 ‘Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

3.  The ‘Directors” means Directors on the Board of the Company.
4

‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’ or ‘the Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of
Directors of the Company, constituled or reconstituted in accordance with the provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules made there under.

‘Independant Director’ means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.  KeyManagerial Personnel ('KMP') means in relation to the Company the persons spacified in section
2(51) of the Act.

7. “Policy or This Policy” means, “"Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

B, “"Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

9.  “Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management
tearn excluding Board of Directors. This would typically include members of management one leval
below the Executive Directors and KMP including the functional heads and those recommended by
NAC from time 1o tima.

Applicability:

The Policy shall be applicable to the following:

* Directors (Executive, and Mon Executive including Independent Directors)
. Key Managerial Personne

L Senior Managemen! Parsonnel

The Policy shall be disclosed in the Board's report also.
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4, Objectives:

a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and remaoval of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
and Senior Managemen! Personnel,

b) To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard 1o idenlifying persons who are qualified
o become Directors (Executive and Non-executive) and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial positions and Senior Managament to determene their remunearation

¢} Toevaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide nacessary report to the Board
for further evaluation.

d) Toraecommend lo the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial, and Senior
Management Personned,

Guiding Principles:
The Policy ensures that:

. The level and compesition of remuneration is reasenable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Directors, KMP and Senior Management Parsonnel of the guality required to run the Company
successhully;

. Relationship of remuneration to pedormance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

. Remuneration 1o Directors, Key Managerial and Senior Management Personnel involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting shor and long term performance cbjectives appropriate 1o
the working of the Company and ils goats; and

8 The process of remuneration management is fransparent, conducted in good faith and in accordance
with appropriate levels of confidentiality.

5.  Interpretation:

Terms thal have nol been defined in this Policy shall have the same maaning assigned to them in the
Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there under as amended from time 1o time.

B. Effective Date:
This policy shall be effective from 27th March, 2015,
T .ﬁpﬁl‘.‘rl:l‘l'll'l'l!'l‘l-t and Remuneration Matters:

a) POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS, KMP, AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

General;

Enhancing the competencies of the Board and attracting as well as refaining talented individuals for the
robe of Directors, and KMP are the basis for the Moménation and Remuneration Commities to select a
candidate for appointmeant 1o the Board, or a KMP. When recommending a candidate for appoinimeani as
Managing Director, Whole Time Director or Executive Direclor, or KMP, the Momination and Remuneration
Committee shall have regard to:

= assassing the appointes against a range of criteria which includes but not ba limited to quakhcations,
skills, regional and indusiry experience, background and other quakiies required 1o operata
successfully in the position, with due regard for the benefits from diversifying the Board;
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the extent to which the appaintes is likely to contribute to the overall effectivenass of the Board, work
constructively with the existing directors and enhance the efficiencies of the Company;
= the skills and experience that the appointae brings 1o the rale of KMP;
In case of Non Executive Direciors and Independant Directors, the Commitiee shall also take into
consideration the following:

E that they are willing to devote sufficient time and anargy in carrying out their duties and responsibilites
effactivaly;

- ihat they have the aptitude to critically evaluate management's working as a member of Board in an
environment of collegiality and trust;

. the nature of existing positions held by them (including directorships or other relationships) and the
impact it may have on their ability to exercisa independent judgment.
Appointment criteria and qualifications:
. Qualifications:
- Degree holder in relevant disciplines (e.g. Finance, Accounting, Management, Law, academics
having knowledge of power markets etc):
Experience of management in a diverse organization;
Excallent interpersonal, communication and representational skills;
Demaonstrable leadership skills;
Commitment to high standards of ethics, personal integrity and probity;
Demonstrable ability o work effectively with a Board of Directors
= Extensive leam building and management skills
. Strong influencing and negotiating skills
In order to be appointed as Director of the Company, the person should also satisty the requirements of

regulation 224 and other applicable regulations of the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power
Market) Regulations, 2010,

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as Direclor, and/or KMP, and recommend to the Board his / her appointmant,

A person should possess adequale qualfication, expertise and experience for the position he / she is
considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and
expaneance possessed by a person is sufficient [ satisfactory or not for the concermned position in general
and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 including rules made there-under, the
CERC (Fower Market) Regulations, 2010, and any other applicable law{s) in particular,

= Term ! Tenure;

1. Managing DirectorWhole-time Director/Manager (Managerial Personnel), KMP or Senior
Management:

“Managing Director” under the Companies Act, 2013 means a direcior who, by virtue of the articles of
a company or an agreement with the company or a resolution passed in its genaral meeting. or by its
Board of Directors, Is entrusted with substantial powers of managemant of the affairs of the company
and includes a director occupying the position of managing director, by whatever name called

The appointment or reappointment or continuation of employment of any person as Whole Time
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Director/Managing DirectorManager of the Company shall be governed by the terms of appointment
subject 1o a condition that the age of such person shall not excead 70 years, In case of other
employees, it shall be governed by the “Staff rules and policy” of the Company.

Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy
years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory
statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointmant
bevond seventy years,

The appoiniment of Senior Management staff would be done by the MD & CEQ as per the staff policy
and the same shall be reported 1o the Committes.

The broad terms and conditions (including tenure, if applicable) of appaintment of KMP and/or Senior
Management shall be govemned by the Recruitment Palicy of the Company and in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Independent Director and Non Executive Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up 1o five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company
and disciosure of such appointment in the Board's repon.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing o bascoma an
Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall nat, during the said period of three
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or
indirecthy.

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of retirement of direciors by rotation shall not
be applicable to Indepandent Direciors.

The term of Non-Executive Direclor shall be govemned by the Articles of Association of the Company
and as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Remowval:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there
under or under any other applicable Act(s), rules and regulations, and for any other reasons, the
Committee may recommend to the Board, with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director or
KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject 1o the provisions and compliance of the said Act, and
govermning ndes and regulations.,

In casa the post of MD/CEC becomes vacant due fo removalresignation or premature lermination
of services or for any other reason, the Board will devise a suitable arrangement {or looking after the
work of MD/CEQ until a new incumbent is appainted as MDICEQ.

Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discration 1o
retain the Director and/or, KMP in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the
retiramant age, for the benefit of the Company.
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POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-
TIME DIRECTOR, NON EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, KMP AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PERSONMNEL

General:

1. Thie Mominations & Remuneration Committee shall determine individual rernuneralion packages
for Directors, and KMPs of the Company taking into account factors it deems relevant, including
but not limited to market, business perdformancea and practices in comparable companias, having
due regard 1o financial and commercial health of the Company as well as prevailing laws and
govemnment/other guidelines. The Committee may consult the Chairman of the Beard as it
deams appropriate. Remuneration of the Chairman shall be recommended by the Commities
to the Board of the Company.

2. The remunaration / compensation / commission etc. will be determinad by the Committee and
recommended to the Board for approval, The remuneration / compensation /| commission atc.
shall be subject 1o the approval of the shareholders of the Company and in case the Comparny
is not able 1o comply with the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the prior
approval of Gentral Govemmaent shall alse be cbtained.

3.  The remuneration/compensation and commission to be paid to the Managing Director and‘or
Whole-time Director and/or Manager shall be in accordance with the provisions laid down in the
Anticles of Association of the Company and as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
and the rules made thare under.

4.  Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by
the Commitiee 1o the Board which should be within the slabs/amounts/percentage approved by
the Shareholders in the case of Whole-time DireclorMDiManager. Increments will be generally
effective from 1st April.

5. Whaereany insurance is taken by the Company on bahalf of its Whole-time Director, MD, Manager,
Chief Executive Officer, Chiaf Financial Officer, the Company Secratary for indemnifying them
against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the
remunaration payable to any such personnel,

Provided that if such person is proved guilty, the premium paid shall be treated as par of the
remuneration.

Remuneration to Whole-time Director or Executive Director / Managing Directoranager (i.e.
Managerial Personnel)

Fixed pay:

The Managerial Personnel shall be efigible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the
Board on the recommendation of the Committea. The break-up of the pay scale and type & quantum
ol perquisites including, employer's contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, car
antitiernent atc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of tha Committee
and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Variable Pay:

The Committea may in its discretion struciure any portion of remuneration to link rewards to corporate
and individual perfformance, fulfilment of specified targets or the attainment of cerain linancial or
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other abjectives set by the Board. The amount payable is determined by the Committes, based on
performance against financial and non-financial metrics,

Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall
pay remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and i it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval
of the Central Govermmeani.

Provisions for excess remuneration:

It any Managerial Perscnnel draws or recadves, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such
sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction
of the Central Govemment, where required, he / she shail refund such sums to the Company and
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recoveny
of such sum relundabile 1o it unless permitied by the Central Govemnmment.

Sitting Fees to Managerial Personnel:

Managerial Personnel shall not be paid any sitling fees for attending meeting(s) of Board of Directors
and any other Committee(s) of Board of Directors.

Remuneration to Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors of the company shall be paid remuneration by way of sifting fees only
for attending the meetings of the Board of Direclors and its Committess, The siting fees payable io
the Independent Directors for attending meetings of Board of Directors or any other Committee(s)
of Board of Directors shall not exceed the maximum amounts prescribed under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 including rules made there-under. The sitting fee ta the Independent Directors
shall not be less than the sitting fee pavable to other directors.

Beside the sitting fees, they shall also be entitied to reimbursement of expenses for attending such
maetingls).

The Independent Directors of the Company shall not be paid any other remuneration or commission.
They shall not be entitied to any stock options but may receive profit related commission as may be
approved by the shareholders.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-executive Directors (ather than Nominee Directors) of the company shall be paid remuneration
by way of sitting fees only for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees.
The sitting fees payable 1o the Non-executive Directors for attending meetings of Board of Directors
and any other Committee(s) of Board of Directors shall not excead the maximum amounts prescribed
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 including rules made there-under. Beside the sitting
feas, they shall also be entitled to reimbursement of expenses for attending such meeting(s). The
Non-executive Directors of the Company shall not be pald any other remuneration or commission.

The remuneration payable o the Non-executive Directors, Independent Directors may be modified or
implermented from time o time with the approval of the Board in due compliance of the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under.
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W.

Remuneration to other KMPs and the Senior Management:

The remuneration payable to KMPs shall be decided by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee having regard to their experience, leadership abilities, initiative taking abilities and
knowledge base.

The remuneration of Senior Management staff would be decided by the MD & CEOQ as per the staff
policy and the same shall be reported to the Commitiee.

8. Evaluation/Assessment of Directors, KMPs and Senior Management of the Company:

a)

b}

Criteria:

The following criteria may be considered for evaluating how effective the performances of the Non-
Executive and Independent Direclors have been:

*  Leadership & stewardship abilities

. Conlributing to clearly defined corporate objectives & plans

. Review & approval of achievement of strategic and operational plans, objectives budgets
. Regular monitoring of corporale results against projections

. Identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks

. Direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs

. Raview management's succession plan

] Assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, structure

. Clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of the commitiees

. Review of company's ethical conduct

In case of Managerial Personnel (e.g. MD, WTD, Manager), and KMP the following additional criteria
may also ba taken into consideration while evaluating the pardormance;

* Obtain adequate, relevant & timaly information from sdemal sources

* Communication of expectations & concems clearty with subordinatesteams

o Development of effective deparimeanial teams

= Assessireview, and propose new policies, structures & procedures including modifications
*  Effective meetings

- Profitability and market share growih

* Geographical Expansion

= Thought Leadership

. Technological Competitiveness

. Degree of Control and Compliance

{The above is only an indicative list)

Methodology:

The evaluation/assessmant of the Directors, KMPs and the Senior Management Personnal of the
Company shall be conducted on an annual basis.,

Evaluation on the aforesaid broad parameters will be conducied by the Independent Directors for
each of the Executive and Non Executive Directors and the Board as a whole in a separate mesting
of the Independent Directors.
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1.

12.

13.

The performance of the non-indepandent directors and Board as a whole, including the performance
of thi Chairperson of the Company, shall be reviewsd by the Independent Direclors.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,
axcluding the Direclor being evaluated.

The performance evaluation of KMP and Senior Managemaent staff would be done by the MD & CED
as per the appraisal policy of the Company and the same shall ba placed bafore the Commitiee.

Succession planning:

The Committee shall review, approve and aid the Board in succession planning for key executives ie.
Board members and KMP.

Reporting:

The Chairman of the Commitiee shall report to the Board on material matters arising at the Commitiee
meetings and wherever applicable shall present the Committee's recommendation fo the Board for its

approval,
Deviations from this Policy:

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the
inerests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do 50 in an individual case.

Amendments to the Policy:
The Board may review the Policy as and when it deams necessary.

The Committee may issue the guidelines, procedures. formats, reporting mechanism and manual in
supplermnent and better implementation to this Palicy, if it thinks necessary.

This Policy may be amended or substituted by the Board as and when required and where there is any
statutory or regulatory changes necessitaling the change in the policy on an urgent basis the requisite
approvals of the Board and'or the Committee may be obtained via circular resolution(s).

Review of the Policy:

The Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis (unless an early review is required) to ensure that it meets
the regulatory requirements or latest industry practices or both.

in case of any amendmentis), clarfication(s), circular(s) elc. issuad by the relevant authorities, not being
consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s). clarification(s),
circular(s) ete. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly
from the effective date as laid down under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) atc.
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Annexure 4

REPORT ON THE CSR ACTIVITIES

As on the Financial Year endad on 315t March, 2024

[Pursuant 1o Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Comprises with the following objectives to create a sensitivity batwaen
corporate and society towards social development and consider CSR as responsibility and cooperation
within the wider stakeholder community. High standard of authenticity, responsibility and account ability
towards all stakeholders including employees, community, consumers, Government etc. To Promote
Socio-economic development through community developmant initiatives. To bring an attiludinal change
in PXIL employees and society about the idea/ parception of CSR

2. Composition of C5R Commiltes:

Sr. | Name of Director Degignation Number of Number of
Ha. { Mature of Directorship meetings of mieatings of
CSA Committes | CS5R Committes
held during the | attended during

year the year
1. | Mr. Vijay Kumar Aggarwal | Chairman & Independant Director 1 1
2. | Mr, Yatrik Vin Non-Executive Director 1 1
3. | Mr. Atul Roongta Non-Executive Director 1 1
4, | Mr. Satyajit Ganguly Managing Director & CEQ 1 1

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and C5R projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The CGSRH Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company atwww, powerexindia.in

4. The executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.-Nat Applicable

5. {a) Awerage net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Nil, due to continuing
losses during three preceding financial years.

b} Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Nil

(e Surplus arising out of the C5R Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years: Mil

(d}y Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e} Total CSR obligation for the financial year [{b)+{c)-(d}].: Nil

6. {a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project: Nat
Applicable

(b} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Mot Applicable

(e} Amount spent on iImpact Assessment, if applicable | Not Applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the Financlal Year [[a)+(b)+(c)] : Mot Applicable
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year : Not Applicabli
i Excess amount for set-off, It any: Nat Applicable
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7. Detalls of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
Mot Applicable

8.  Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year: Mo

8. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per sub- section (5) of section 135 : The Provisions of sub- section (5) of section 135 are not applicable.

On behalf of the Board
For Power Exchange India Limited
» Dale : 17thMay, 2024
Place : Mumbai
Ashok Sethi
Chairman of Board & CER Commities
{DIN: 01741811}
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Power Exchange India Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Power Exchange India Limited (the Company'},
which comprise tha Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss{including other
comprehensive incoma), the Statemaent of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year than
ended, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other
explanatory Information.

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according fo the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companias Act, 2013 ('the Act) in the manner 5o
required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit{including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash fiows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Dur responsibilities under those Standards are Turther describad in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. Wee are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Instiute of Chanered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statemeants under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rutes thereunder, and we have fulilled our ofter athical responsibilitias in accordance with these requiremanis
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinkon,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board's report but does not include the financial statements and our awditor's repon
thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statemants does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility i to read the ciher information and, in
doing o0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the awdit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated., If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing 1o report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial stalemants that give a true and fair
vigw of the financial position, financial parformance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles genarally accepled in India, specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the rules
rmade ihereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting reconds in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other iregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, iImplementation and maintenance of adequalte internal
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financial controls, thal were cperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and complateness of the accounting
records, rélevant 1o the preparation and presantation of the financial staterments that give a true and fair view and
are frée from matenal misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as & going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going
concem basis of accounting unkess the Board of Directors either intends 1o liquidate the Company or (o cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for oversasing the Compamy’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our chijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatemant, whether due to fraud or emor, and 1o issue an awditor's repord that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducied in
accordance with SAs will always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatermenis can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expectad
to influence the economic decisions of users takan on the basis of thess financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemnent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
of arrof, design and perorm audit procedunas responsive 10 those risks, and cbtain audil evidance that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ouropinion, The risk of ot detecting a material misstatemant
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal controd,

. CObain an understanding of intemal financial controls rebevant to the audit in order 1o design audit
proceduras that are approprate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whather the Company has in place an adequate intemnal inancial controls system over financial reponing
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectivenass of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related dischosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a matenial uncedainty exists related fo events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concam. If we conclude
that a matenal uncerainty exists, we are requirad to draw attéention in our audior's report to the related
dizclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, o modify cur opirdon. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease to continue as a going concenm.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statermenis represent the underiying transactions and events in a
manmner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may b influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and quatitative factors in (i) planning of the scopa of our
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audit work and evaluating the results of our work; and (i) 1o evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in
the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controf that we
identiy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govermnance with a statemant that we have complied with refevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the Order’) issued by the Gavernment of
India — Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we enclose in
the annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order. to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a}  Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

{b)  In ocur epinien, praper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(@)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from
being appointed as a director in lerms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

if With respect fo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference (o financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such confrols, refer to our separate Repert in
"Annexure B",

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act

(h)  With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Bule 11
af the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinicn and 1o the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

{iy ~ The Company does nol have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
« Reler MNote 32 to the Financial Statements;

(i)  The Company does not have any long-lerm contracts for which there were any  material
loreseeable losses. The Company does not have any derivative contracts.

(i)  There were no amounts which were required to be transfemred 1o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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(iv}

(v)

(wi}

Place: Mumbal

{a)

(&)

(<)

{a)

(b)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and  belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to or in any other
persons or entitias, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whather recorded im writing or otherwisa, that the Intermediany shall, whather, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities ientified in any manner whatscever
by or on behall of the company (“Ultimate Beneficianas™) or provide any guaranies,
security or the like on behalf of the Uliimale Beneficiaries.

The management has represanted, that, 1o the best of its knowledge and  belied, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or enfitias, including
foreign antities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether reconded in writing
or otherwize, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, land or invest in
olher persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Llitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

In owr opinion and based on the audit procedures we have considerad reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come 1o cur notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) confain ary material
risstalamant.

During the year, the Company has paid Cumulative Preference Dividend arrears to
the holders of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) in
accordance with saction 123 of the Act, as applicable,

As stated in Note 16(vjof the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the
Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval
of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with saction 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Based on our examination which inclueded test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining s books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail
{edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come acrass any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Aule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014
on presarvation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is nat
applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024

Date: May 17, 2024

20

For K. 5. Aiyar & Co.
Charterad Accountants
ICAl Firm Reqgistration Mo: 100186W

Sachin A, Megandhi

Partner

Membarship No.: 112888
UDIN: 24112888BKBITE2176
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Annexure to the Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
Repon of even date on the financial statemants for the year ended on March 31, 2024, of Power Exchange India
Limited)

(i (a} (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assats.
(b} Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year. In our opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assats. Mo malerial discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.
() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable
property. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of s Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Uise assets) or intangible assets. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(i)(d) are not
applicabla.

(&) According to the information and explanations given to us,no proceedings have been

initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for
holding any benami property under the Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder

(il (a) Cansidering the nature of business of the Company, clause 3 (ii)(a) of the Order regarding
imvantary is not applicable for the vear,
(b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in

aggregate, at any points ol tima during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(il) (b) of the Order
is not applicable.

{ii) As informed, the Company has not made invesimenis in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured orf unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinerships or any olher parties, covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of
clauses 3(iu)(a). 3(u)(b). 3(){c).3diiNd) i) and3(iijf) of the Order are nat applicable.
The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinerships
or any other parties.

(iv) As informed, the Company has not advanced any loans, made any investments or given
any guarantees and securities. Accordingly, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v} The Company has not accepled any deposits from the public 1o which the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies {(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014 apply. No order has been passed by the
Company Law Board, Mational Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any othar court
ar any athar tribunal.

{wi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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{vii}  (a)

(b)

According to the records of the Company, it is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customns, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other material stalulory dues to the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given o us, no undisputed amounts pavable
in respact of above which were outstanding, as at March 31, 2024, for a period of morg
than six months from the date on which they became payable,

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, dues of income tax, goods and
services tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

”. s of Sta [.“ reof dues) | Financial year / Period to | F : Y - . (Rs.in

which amount relates to | is panding thousands)

Income Tax Act, 1981 (Tax Fmﬁﬂpgiﬂfﬂ-n Commissionar of Incoma Tax [Appaeals) | 3,585,05

Income Tax Acl, 1987 (Tax Jmﬂﬂlpgzﬂﬂ-ﬁ Commissioner of Incoma Tax (Appaals) | 7.75

Sanice Tax

iCH.‘!ENE—Juﬂﬂ 2017 Asst Commissioner of CGET 1,566.65

(i)

() (&)

(d)

(&)

(x) (a)

(o)

(xi}  (a)

(b}

(c)

(xit) (&)

According to the information and explanations given 1o us there are no unrecordad rans.
actions in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income dur-
ing the year in the tax assessmants under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

The Company has mol taken any loan or other borrowings from banks or dabenture hoider
or any other lenders. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(a) to (ix){(c) of the Order is
not applicable o the Company.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the no funds raised on short-lerm
basis have been used for long-ferm purposes.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
reponing under clause 3(ix){e) and (f) of the Order is not applicabla.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and accordingly, reponting under clause
3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Gompany has nol made any preferential aliot mentor private placement of shares or
convartible debantures(fully, partially or optionally converlible) during the year and accord-
ingly reparting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order k= not applicable.

According to the information and explanations fumished by the management, which have
been relied vpon by us, there ware no frawds by the Company or on the Company noticed
or reported during the year,

Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with tha Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations furnished by the management, which have
been relied upon by us, thers wane no whistle blower complaints received during the year
by tha Compary.

in our opinion, the Company is not a Midhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xid) of the
Order is not applicable 1o the Company.
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i i) In our opinion, all the fransactions with the related parties are in comgliance with sections
177 and 188 of Companies Actwhere applicable and the deatails have been disclosed in
the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv} (&) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(b} We have considered, the Internal audit reports for the year under awdit, isseed to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures

(2] According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not entersd
into any non-cash transactions with direciors or persons connected with him.

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b} The Company is not a Non-Banking Finance Company or a Housing Company. Accordingly,
provision of clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company(CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) In our opinion, there is only one core investment company within the Group ('Companies
in the Group’ as defined in the Core Invesimeant Companies (Reserve Bank) Direclions,
20186).

{xvil) Im our opinion, the Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in
the immadiately precading financial year.

{ v There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
clause Ivii) of the Order is not applicable

{cix) On the basis information and explanations given 1o us and based on audit of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liahbilities, other information accompanying the financial stataments, review of Board of
Directors and management plans, in our opinion no material uncenainty exists as on tha
date of the audit report regarding Company's capability 1o meal its abiities axisting at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pericd of one year from the
balance sheet date.

We, however, state thal this is not an assurance as to the luture viahility of the Com-
pany. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to tha date of the audit
repor and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheat date, will get discharged by the Com-
pany as and when they fall due.

i3} On account of losses in earler years, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not
applicable 1o the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clausa 3(xx}a) and (b) of the
Order iz not applicable for the year.

For K. 5. Alyar & Co,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 100186W

Sachin A, Negandhi

Partrier
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 112888
Date: May 17, 2024 UDIN: 24112888BKBITE2176
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of Power
Exchange India Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Acst")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Power Exchange India
Limited {the Company™} as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Comparny for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
cn the intemal control over financial reporting criteria establizshed by the Company considering the essantial
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Chver Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively lor ensuring
the ordery and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence o company's policias, the saleguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of ihe accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our awdil. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidancs Note on Audit of Intemal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI
and deemed 10 be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the axtent applicable io
an audit of internal financial contrals, both applicable io an awdit of Intemal Financial Conirols and, both issued
by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we
comiply with ethical requiremeants and plan and perform the audit to obfain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate intemal financial confrols with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls cperated effectivedy in all matarial respects.

Owr apdit involves performing proceduras to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectivenass. Our audit of internal
financial controls with relerence o financial statements incleded obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference 1o financial statements, assessing the risk that a matenal weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due 10 fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence wa have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference 1o financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial controd with reference to financial statemeanis is a process dasigned to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stalerments
for external purpeses in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's intermal financial
control with reference 1o financial statements incluedes those policies and procedures that (1) perain to the
maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairty reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assels of tha company: (2) provide reasonable assurancs thal transactons are recorded as necessary io
parmit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
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recaipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding pravention or timely detection
ol unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statermanis.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper managemant ovarride of contrals, material misstatemenis due to error or
fraud may occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of tha internal financial contrals with
reference o financial statements to luture periods are subject to the risk that the infernal financial contral with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or proceduras may deteriorata.

Opinion

In cur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate inemal financial controls system with
rafarance to financial statements and such intemal financial controls with reference to financial statemeants wara
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote an Audit
of Intermal Financial Controls Owver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For K. 5. Aiyar & Co.
Charterad Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 100186W

Sachin A, Negandhi

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership Mo.: 112888
Date: May 17, 2024 LUDIN: 24112888BKBITE2175
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BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2024

Total current assets

_ {RAs. in Lakhs)
™ S ~ Asst | Asmt
ASSETS
Hon-cummeni Assels
(a} Property, Plant and Equipment 3 17.34 14719
(B}  Inkangible assets 4 &) 295,21 419.97
(] RGNt b0 se assel i ) 281 53 13354
{d} Financial Agsats
Crihar Financial Assad
Mon Currant Bank Balances B 1.537.80 9204
Crhers: 5 54,51 ani7
{2} Dederned tax assats (nat) B 53,45 3034
i Mon Current ias asse1s T 1,400 5 778,12
gl Crher non-curent assets B 4,13 129
Tatal nen-current assels 4,242 B4 1,840.65
Current Assels
(e} Firancial Assals
il Invasimants 13 16704 4570
(] Trade Recodables ] 3.3 1454
(i) Cashand casgh equivalents 0 1987167 418857
() Bank balances atier than (i} abowe 11 1058317 10,541 92
v} Oihar Financial Assals 12 40664 25292
(b Other cumen] assals 14 1927 1082

S1.041,01 1545587

Total Assets FIFTEN IL336A1
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Euwwm capsal m;: E.847.0n 5.31;-31
Oither 3,342 4R 1,04

Tolal Equity [ #$.15948] = 6.090.89 %
Liabilities
mﬁm Liakikties

current Babilsos % 35794 1
Tolal nor-current lkablities 35794 'ﬁ:
Current Linbilities
(@) Financial Liabiibes

{ii}  Deposits (Urdacursd) 17 1,506 47 145310

{ili} Odhes Bnancial kakdlities 18 21,50 27 TASG 2

{wi  Trade Payables 18

(A) olal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smal entepnses; and 527 1468
(B] oial outstanding cues of credilons otfslr 1han micro enterprises and ARG B4 75,91
amall enlepriges, -
by Crihear curment Eabilitas 19 15122 16278
(gl Prowisions 20 18218 o8 81
[df Incoeme Tax Liakshities 1, 748
Toinl current Habilities 25 TA6.23 1
Todal Liabilities | 26,0847 10, 405.52
Total Equity and Linsditios e 28080 17.396.50,
Eummany of malsial soeounting pohicies 2
s pr gt report of even daie aisched Far and on behall of the Hoard of Direciors
For KESAIVAR & Ca,
CRarmgri=d Aooonrians Askak Sathi Yatrik ¥in
[Firrs Fadistralion Mo 10071 88W] Cha'rmay Divaciow
Dobd: T EIIE DHre OnGEETRE

Sachin A. Megandhl Batyajit Shakhar Pas
Farinar MO & GED Citval Fimancial Oficer
Mombership Mambaer: 112888 D OS9G 1418
Flacn : Wumbal Surdl Hirgeani
Date : May 17, 2024 Company Sacreiy
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(As. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note | For the year ended | For the year ended
Hao. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I INCOME
Fevenue from operabons 21 5.421.83 481585
Ot Incaomie 22 800.10 73443
Total Income (1) 6.321.93 B,550.28
Il EMPENSE
Employee benefit expanses 23 1.093.24 a41.07
Financa Cost 24 47T.60 4669 |
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 25 337.57 apg.e2|
Other Expenses 26 1,885,52 1,440.06
Total Expenses (I} 3,363.93 2,636.44
il Profit before Income tax (1) 2,958.00 2591384
IV Tax Expense g
Curren] Tax Tr2.00 T48.00
Defarred Tax (24.18) (5.23)
Incoms tax adjusiment relating to earier yaar . 10.62
Tolal Tax Expense T4T7.81 T5E.80
VW Profit after tax for the year (Il - IV) 2,210,189 216104
¥l Other Comprehensive Income
Hams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Rameasurameant of dafined banelit plans; {15.63) .90
Tax impact on Remeasuremant of defined benefi plans 3.93 {1.74)
Other comprehensive income for the year after tax (V1) (11.85) 5.16
Vil Total Comprehensive Income for the year [V + V1) 2.188.49 z,iﬁ.lT
Earnings per share (Face Value Rs.10 each) 27
Bagic & Diluted ...... in As 378 7o
Summary of material accounting polices 2
The accompanying notes ane an ntegral part of the financial
slatemants
As pid o Fepor] of gvan date attachad Faf and on Behall of the Board of Direcices
For K.5.AIVAR & Ca,
Chamensd Accourtants fizkok Satni ¥aitrik Vin
[Firm Fngisimiion No.; 1001B5W] Chaiese Diraoizr
Do DA TRI8T 8 CHN: O7EEETES
Smchin &, Negandhd Satyn|it Garguly Shokhar Rao
Parinor MO & CEQ il Farsdicsiil Sty
Mambarghip Numbses: 112888 DUN- DRSS 1418
Plgy © Muyming Sunil Hingwani
Dale : May 17, 2024 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(A) Equity Share Capital

{REs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
As at March 31, 2022 5.847.01
Changes in equity share capital B
As at March 31, 2023 5,847.01
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2024 5,847.01
(B) Other Equity
Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (1,022.22) (1.022.22)
Profit for the year 2,161.04 2,161.04
Qther Comprehensive Income 5.16 5.16
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,143.98 1,143,995
Profil for the year 221019 221019
Other Comprehensive Income {11.69) (11.68)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,342.48 3,342.48

As per our report of even date attached

For K.5.AIYAR & Co.
Chartered Acoountants

[Firm Registration No.: 100186W]

Sachin A. Negandhi
Pariner
Membership Number: 112888

Place : Mumbal
Date : May 17, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors

Ashok Sathi
Chairman
DiIM: 01741911

Satyajit Ganguly
KMD & CED

LHN: 06961418

Sunil Hingwani
Company Secratary

Yatrik Vin
Chractor
DIM: 07EE2795

Shekhar Rao
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{Rs. in Lakhs)
For the
Partiuars "March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
I. | Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before fax 2,958.00 291384
Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amoriization expanses 258,38 232.46
Amortisation of right fo use assets 77.39 74.36
Interest on lease liahilities 13.21 18,03
Net gain on lease rent concession - (0.83)
Gakn on sale of investments {4.48) -
Profit on sale of Asset - {0.07)
Met (gain) / loss on invesiments measured at FVTPL {5.18) {1.70)
Amortization-Financial Asset 1.80 1.80
Interest on fixed deposits (869.56) (639.55)
Provisions no longer required written back 18.38 81.59
Interest income from financial assets at amonised cost (1.87) (1.79)
Change in operating assels and liabilities
| (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 11.31 47.44 |
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assels 10.90) (3.84)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assats i(2.84) 1.B6
{Increass)/decrease in other current assets (5.485) (0.28)
Increase/{decrease) in labilities & provisions 14,747 .94 (6,059.13)
Cash generated/ (used) from operations 17,192.72 {3,334.81)
Income taxes (paid) / refund (714.38) (372.57)
Met cash inflow [ (outflow) from operating activities (A) 16,478.35 {3,707.39)
Il | Cash flows from investing activities

Paymant for property, plant and equipment and intangibles I {236.16) {211.31)
assals
Paymeam for investmeants in Fixed Depaosits (24 752 27) (2.271.34)
Proceeds from Fixed Deposits 23.705.26 62.00
Payrnent for purchase of investments (1,144.98) (45.00)
Proceeds from sale of Invesiments 1.044.31 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.07
Interest recelved 68787 511.63

FOWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED
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otk March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
| Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities (B) (695.97) {1,953.95)
m 1 Cash flows from financing activities
§ Payment of Lease Liability (86.47) (75.70)
| Interest on lease Rabilities (13.21) (15.03)
Met cash inflow / {cutflow) from financing activities (C) (39.58) (94.73)
IV | Met increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 15,682.70 (5,756.08)
L) | Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial 4,188.497 9 045 04
| year
Vi | Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 10) 19,871.67 4,188.96

Moles to the Statement of Cash Flow :

1. The above Staternant of cash flow has been praparad under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in the Ind AS
= T on Statement of Cash Flow as notified under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015,

2. Previous year's figures have been regroupedireclassified wherever necessary o comespond with the

current year classification.

As per our report of even date attached
For K.S.AIYAR & Co.

Faor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Charerad Accountianis Ashok Sethi Yatrik Vin
[Firm Regisiration No.: 1001 86W) Chairman Director

DiM: 1741811 DiN: OTeE27Ta5
Sachin A. Negandhi Satyajit Ganguly Shekhar Rao
Partrer MD & CED Chief Financtal Officer
Membership Number: 112888 DNN: OESG 1418
Place : Mumbai Sunil Hingwani
Date : May 17, 2024 Company Secretary

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED




ﬁﬂl ANNUAL REPORT Ll_ﬁ ; B PXIL

Trwrhorrrarg Posee lariee

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate information

Power Exchange India Limited ['PXIL' or the Company’) s a public imited company, having its registered
offica at 901, Sumer Plaza, Marol Maroshi Road, Andher East, Mumbai-400059, India. Established
in 2008, PXIL promoted by MNational Stock Exchange India Ltd & National Commodity and Derivatives
Exchange India Lid, is India’s first institutionally promoted power exchange that provides innovative and
credible solutions to transform the Indian Power Markets. The power exchange provides an elecironic
platform for frading in power al national level.

2. Material accounting policies
2.1. Basis of preparation
2.1.1. Compliance with Ind AS

Thesa financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for cerain financial instruments which are
measurad at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (" Act') (to the extent notified).The ind
AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and ameandmeants tharato.

Accounting podicies have been consistently applied except whera a newly issuved accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an axisting accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hithario in usa,

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been approved for issue by the Board of
directors of the Company in their meeting held on 17th May 2024,

2.1.2. Historical Cost Convention

The Financial Statemeants have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for the followings:

- certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at fair value;

® assels held for sale measured at fair value less cost 1o sell; and

* defimed benefit plans plan assels measured at fair value;

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
Senvices.

All amounts disslosad in the hinancial statements and noles have been roundead off o the nearest thousands
and decimal thereof as per the requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

2.1.3. Use of estimaltes

The preparation of the financial stalemants in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the repored amounts of assels and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent asseds and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reporied amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge
of current evenis and actions, uncarainty about the assumption and estimates could result in the outcome
requiring matenial adjusiment to the carmying amount of asset and liabiities.
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2.2,

2.3.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presenis assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is treated as curranl whan it s

aj Expected to be realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

Lo Expected to be realisad within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a)
above, or

d)  Cashor cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twehve months after the reporing period

All gther assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a) It is expectad to be settled in normal operating cycle
b} It is hadd primarily for the purpose of trading

cl Il is due to be settled within twelve manths after the repoarting period other than for (a) above,
or

d)  There is no unconditional right to defer the sattlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other labilities are classified as non-current,
Foreign currency transactions
aj Functional & Presentation Currency

Items included in the Financial Statement of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic amvironmant in which the entity operates (“the functional currency’).
The Financial Stalement are prasentad in indian currency (INR), which is the Company's
functicnal and presentation currency.

b Foreign Currency Transaction and Balances

Foreign curréncy transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at ihe dales of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
setilement of such fransactions and from the translation of monatary assets and liabilitias
denominated in foreign currencies al the period end exchange rates are recognized in
Staternant of Profit and Loss,

Man-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transtated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Transiation differences
on asselts and liabilities carred at fair valua are reported as par of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, transiation differences on non-rmonetary assets and labilities such as aquity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the Statement of prafit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monatary assals
such as equity investiments classified as FVOCI are recognized In other comprehensive
incoma.
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2.4, Falr value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, dervatives at fair value at each balance
sheet dale.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
ordary fransaction between marked participants af the measuremeant date.

A fair value measuremeant of a non-financial assel lakes into account a markest participant's ability to
genarate economic benefits by using the asset in its highast and bast use or by selling it fo another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and bes! use,

The Company uses valuation techniques thal are appropriale in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the usa of relevant chaarvabla inputs
and minimizing the use of unobsarvable inputs.

The Company categorizes assets and Rabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as
follows:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted)
This higrarchy includes financial instruments measured using quated prices.
* Laval 2

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quated prices included within Level 1 that are obsarvabla
for the assat or lkability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs include the folbowing:

a)  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

B) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.
c) Inputs othar than quoted prices that are obsarvable for the asset or liability.

o) Market — comoborated inputs.

. Level 3

They are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability reflecting significant modifications
to obsarvable related market data or Company's assumptions about pricing by market
participants. Fair values are delermined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from cbservable current marke! transactions
in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon fransfer of control of promised goods or services o customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company axpects to receive in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company recognizes revenue in the period in which it satisfies its
performance cbligation by transferring promised goods or services (o the customer, The sources of
ravenue and Company's accounting policy are as follows:

{i)  Transaction charges — révenua in respect of trading transactions on exchange s recognised
in accordance with the Company’s fee scales at a point in time as an when the transaction is
completed.
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2.6.

2.7,

(i) Other services — all other revenue is recognised in the pericd in which the performance
obligation is satishied over a parod ol time or point in time.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in detarmining the transaction price. The
transaction price is based upon the amount the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring of promised services 1o the customer after deducting allowances and discounts
etc. Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government.

Income taxes

The income tax expanse or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in delerred lax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and 1o unused tax lossas, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting pericd. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
lax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subj@ct to interpratation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected ko be paid to the tax
authorities.

The deferred tax credit'charge is recognised on all temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases uses in
the computation of taxable profits. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting pericd and are axpectad to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reparting period and
are recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available 1o utiize those
temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assels and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax labiliies are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to cfiset and intends gither to setile on a net basis, or to realize the assel and setile the lability
simultaneously,

Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE are slated at actual cost less accumulaled depreciation and impairmeand loss, Aclual cosl is
inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses for bringing the
assel to its working conditions os it intendad use and any cost directly attributable 1o bring the asset
into the lecation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Management. It includes professional fees and borrowing costs for gualifying assets.

Significant Pars of an iern of PPE (including major inspections) having diferent useful lives &
materal value or other factors are accounted for as separate components, All other repairs and
maintenanca cosls are recognized in the statement of profit and koss as incurred.

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use,

The estimated useful ives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary,
changes in estimates are accounted for prospactively.
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2.8,

Depreciafion on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other
factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on assats is provided on the straight-line method using the rates based on the economic
usedul life of assets as estimated by the management but not being more than the limits specified in
Schadula || of the Companias Act, 2013 as below:

; Useful Life as per | Useful life as per
e Management | Companies Act, 2013
Computer Trading Systems 4 Years 6 Years
Computer Systemns - Office Autornation 3 Years 3 Years
Telacommunication Systems 4 Years 6 Years
Office Equipment 4 Years 5 Years
Furniture & Fixtures and Electrical Installations 3 Years 10 Years
/ Fittings on leased premises

Depreciation for assets purchased or sold during a period is proporticnately changed.
PPE whose aggregate cost is Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition,

The above useful lide iz as per the managemant estimate of the wsaful life which is lower than that
prescribed in Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013. This is based on the consistant practices
followad, past exparience, intemal assessmeant and duly supported by technical advice.

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benedits are axpecied
to anise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retinameant of
an iterm of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Intangible Assets
(i}  Intangible assets
Recognition of intangible assets
Computer software
Purchase of computer software used for the purpose of operations is capitalized, However,
any axpenses on software support, maintenance, upgrade efc. payable periodically is charged
1o the Statemant of Profit & Loss. Computer software is amortized over a period of 4 years.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the company are recognized as intangible assets
when the following criteria are met:

. it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be availabla far use
. managament intends& has ability to complete the software and use or sell it
. software will be able to generate probable future economic benefits

. Softwares are avallable, and the expenditure attributable to the software during its
developrment can be reliably measured.

Capitalized developmen! costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the
point at which the asset is available for use. Infangible assels ara amortized over a period
of four years or remaining life of the product considered at the end of each financial year
whichewver is earier,
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De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal, Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible
assel, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(if) Intangible assets under development

All costs incurred in development, are initially capitalized as Intangible assets under
development- till the time these are either transferred to Intangible Assets on completion
or expensed as Software Development cost (including allocated depreciation) as and when
determined of no further use.

2.9. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cosis thal are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrawing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
bormawing of funds.

2.10. Leases
Az a Lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

(a) Fimance leases

Finance leases when acquired, are capitalized at the lease's inception at the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease paymenis. The
coresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or olher
financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of profit and loss over the lease
pariod 50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining bakance of the
liability for each period.

{b) Operating Leases

Paymanis made under oparating leases (net of any incanlives recevad from the lessor) are
charged to the Statemant of profit and loss on a straight-ling basis over the period of the
lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor's expacted inflationary cost increases.

The company assesses whether a contracl containg a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or conlains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset, the company assesses
whathar:

i1}  The contract involves the use of an identified asset

i2) The company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the pericd of the lease and

‘ﬁﬂ POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED




(SixTeENTH ANNUAL REPORT L‘E ; G PXIL

2.11.

(3}  The company has the right 1o direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognizes a right to usa asset and
& corresponding lease liability for all lease amrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with & term of bwelve months or less (shor-term leases) and low value leases, For
these shor-term and low value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an
operaling expense on a siraight-ine basis over the lerm of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. Right 1o use assels and lease liabilities incluedes ihese options when it
is reasonably certain that they will be exercized,

The rights 1o use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease Rability adjusted for any lease paymeanis madea al or prior o the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsaquently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmeant losses.

Right to use assels are depraciated from the commencament date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. if a lesses transfers
ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right fo use asset reflects that the Company
expects 1o exercise a purchase option, the related right 1o use asset is depreciated over tha
useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is indtially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the futura leasa
paymenis. The lease paymenis are discounied using the interest rate irmplicit in the laasa
or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are
rernaasured with a cormesponding adjustment fo the related right o use asset if the company
changes its assessment if whether it will axercise an extension or a termination option. The
lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease Eability (using the effective intarest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to raflect the lease paymenis made.

Lease [Fability and Right to use asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet
and lease payments have been classifed as financing cash Hows.

Az a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a kessor Is recognised in incomea
on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipls are structured o ncraasa in
ling with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.
The respective leased assets are included in the Statement of Assels and Liabilties based on
their nature.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assels thal have an indefinite useful lile are not subject to amortization and are
tested annually for impairmant or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairmant whenaver events
of changes in circumstances indicate thal the carmying amount may not be recoverable, An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assel's carrying amount axceeds
its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing iImpairment, assels are
grouped al the lowest levels for which there are separately idantifiable cash infiows which

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED E.'I:,



ﬁm ANNUAL REPORT 11_5 j %EELI;

212,

2.13.

2.14.

are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewad for possible
reversal of the impairmant at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and discountsfincentives are recognized when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an cutflow
of resources will be requirad to sattle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Al the end of each reporing period, provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to sattle the present cbligation at
a luture date. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects currant market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spacific 1o the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
EXpense.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, nat of tax, from the proceeds,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset

Contingent Rabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or NON-CoCUMENCE
of one or more uncerain future evenis nol wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arses from past evenis where it is either not probable thal an outflow
of resources will be required o settle the obligation or a refiable estimate of the amount cannot
be made. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. Contingent
liabilities are not disclosed in case the possibiity of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent asset are nol disclosed in the financial statemenis
unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Employee Benafits
Short term employee benefits:-

Liabilittes for wages and salaries, including non-maonetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months alter the end of the period in which the emplovees render the
ralated service are recognized in respect of employees” services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expecied to be paid when the liabilities are seffled.
Sher term emploves benefils are recognized in Statement of profit and loss in the period
in which the related service is rendered. The liabilites are presenied as curment employee
benefit obligations in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Long-Term employee benefits
I Defined contribution plans
Provident Fund

The Company's monthly contribution towards Provident Fund to Regional Provident
Fund Commissioner (RPFC) is accounted for on accrual basis and charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss for the yvear.
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Defined benefit plans
Gratulty

The Company has maintained a Group Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Scheme with the
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) towards which it annually contributes a sum
determined by LIC. The liability or assel recognized in the Balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporing pericd less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benafit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estirnated fulure cash outflows by referance to yislds on govemment securities at the
and of the reporing period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
ohilkgation.

The net intarest cost is calculated by apphying the discount rate to the net balance of

the defined benefit obligation and thea fair value of plan asseats, This cost s included in
amployes banalit expensa in the statement of profit and loss.

FRemeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprahensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement
of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendmenis or curallments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past
sarvice cosl

Leave Encashment

The company has provided for the liabdlity at period end on account of un-availed
earmed leave as per the acluarial valuation as per the Projected Unit Credit Method,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in OC| as and when incurred.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of
the defined banefit obligation and the fair value of plan assels. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to
the asset ceiling (if applicabla) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as
defined above),are recognized in other comprehensive incoma except thosa included
in cost of assels as permitted in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently
reclassified 1o profit or loss,

The retirement banefit obligation recognized in the Financial Stalements represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefil plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of reductions in future contributions to the plans,

2.15. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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2151, Investment and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus , in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atiributabla
o the acquisition or issue of the financial assel. Purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. However, trade receivables that da
nat contain significant financing componant are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following
calegonas based on business model of the entity:

Debt Instruments at amorlized cosi
. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)

. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCIH)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debt instrument’ is maeasured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are

met:

a)  The assetis held within a businass model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured al amortized
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Debt instrument at FYTOCI
A ‘debl instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

B}  The assel's contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements ara recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment lossas
& reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the assed,
cumulative gain or kass previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to PEL
Interast eamead whilst holding FVTOC! debt instrument is reporied as interest income using
thie EIR method.
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Dabt instrument at FVYTPL

Any debt instrument, which doas not meet the criteria for categorization as al amortized cost
or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect 1o dasignate a debl instrumant, which otherwisa meels
amortized cost or FVTOC criteria, as at FVTPL. Howewver, such election iz aliowed only i
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistancy (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the PAL.

Equity investments

All equity investiments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, the Company may
make an irevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial recognition and Is imevocable

It the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. This amount i
not recycled from OCI 1o P & L, even on sale of investiment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the PEL.

Cash and Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly lquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and
having onginal maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks and fixed deposits
which are unrestrictad for withdrawal and usage.

De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognized only whan

. The Company has fransferred the rights to recebve cash flows from the financial asset
or

. retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contraciual cbligation o pay the cash flows to one of maore recipients,

Where the Company has translerred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is de-recognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognized if the
company has not retained control of the financial assat. Whera the company retains control
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing
myadvamant in the financial asset.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of Impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
sk exposure;

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured al amortized cost a.q.,
loans, debl securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets thal are debt instrumants and are measured as at FVTOC!

¢}  Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from fransactions that are within the scope of ind AS 115.

dj}  Loan commitmanis which are not measured as at FVTPL

g)  Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
. Trade raceivables or contract revenue recefvables; and

. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as incomel expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).

Simplified approach recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date, right from it initial recognition.

Far recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significan! increasa in the credit risk sinca initial
recognition , If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. Howaver, if credit risk has increased significantly, iifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant incréase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. ECL is the difference between after
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. Lifetima ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

2.15.2 Financial liabilities

Classification as debl or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the
substance of the confractual arrangements entered into and the definiions of a fnancial liabilkty and
an equity instrumant.

Initial recognition and measurament

Financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomas a party to the contraciual provisions
of the instrument. Financial liabilities are imitially measurad at the amorized cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.
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2.16.

2.17.

2.18.

Subsequent measurameant

Financial iabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective imerest rate
method, Financial liabilities carmied at fair value through profit or loss are measured af fair value with
all changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are prasented as current liabilities

unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are measured at
amortised cost based on the classification of financial instrumenis.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amartized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a Hability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the
liabifity is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impaiment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

De recognition

A financial liability is derecognized whean the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
Qr expires.

Cash & Cash equivalent

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other shor-term, Righly liquid investmeants with onginal maturities of three months or less that

are readily comvertible to known amounis of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked restricted for specific purposes.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash an hand, in
banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafis that are repayable on
demand and are considered par of the Company’s cash management systam. [n the balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are presented under bormowings within current labilites.

Statermnent of cash flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
elects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipls or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from cperating, investing and financang activities of the Company are
segregated,

Eamings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing:

" the profit attributable 1o owmers of the comparny

" by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED ET’



218,

ANNUAL REPORT LLE 3 $PXIL

Diluted earnings per share

Dilvted samings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share
io lake into account:

. ihe after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
polential equity shares, and

. the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Critical Accounting Estimates & Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statement requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
will saldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a
higher degree of judgment or complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted
due to estimates and assumptions tuming out 1o be different than those originally assessad. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the Financial Statement.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

. Estimation of useful [ife of intangible asseat (Mote 4)
. Estimation of defined benefit obligation (Nole 28)

«  Estimation of contingent liabilities {Note 31)

. Estimation of Impairment of Assels

Estimales and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on histoncal exparience
and other lactors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Compary and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

POWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED
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{Rs. in Lakhs)
% : %‘;’ﬁ' Fixtures |Equipment| tion
systems

Gross carrying amount

Cost as at April 1, 2022 15.76 134.18 507 45,95 28.60 229.57
Additions 031 7.h2 - .64 0.31 8.07
Dizposals / Adjusimanis 322 102.47 3.93 20.78 - 130.40
As at March 31, 2023 12.85 39.52 1.15 25.81 28.0 108.24
Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation as 15.50 122.61 4,85 4275 2819 213.99
at April 1, 2022

Depreciation for the vear 0.21 B.a7 0.05 1.03 0.20 9.85
Disposals / Adjustments 3.22 102.47 393 20.78 . 130.40
lAa at March 31, 2023 12.49 28.51 107 23.00 28.38 93.45
Met carrying amount as at 0.37 11.01 0.08 28 0.53 14.79
March 31, 2023

Gross carrying amount

Cost as at March 31, 2023 12.85 39.52 1.15 25.81 £8.91 108.24
Additions .92 6.36 353 10.81
Disposals / Adjustments 0.42 0.42
As at March 31, 2024 12.78 45.88 1.15 28.92 28.01 118.84
Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation as 12.49 28,51 1.07 23.00 28.38 93.45

1

:'Iamh 31, 2023

Depraciation for the year 0.39 6.07 0.05 1.56 020 g.28
Disposals / Adjustments 0.42 0.42
As at March 31, 2024 12.88 34.58 112 24.14 28.58 101.30
Met carrying amount as at 0.90 11.30 0.03 4.78 0.33 17.34
March 31, 2024

During the period, the Company has reviewed its tangible assets for impairment loss as required by Indian
Accounting Standard 38 - “impairment of Assets™. In the opinion of management, no provision for impalmeant

loss is considarad necessary,

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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{Rs. in Lakhs)
Costs Computer - Software
Gross carrying amount
Cost as at April 1, 2022 2,106.88
Additions 20223
Disposals / Adjustmenis =
As at March 31, 2023 | 2,308.11

|
Accumulated Amortisation |
Accumulated Amortisation as at Aprl 1, 2022 1,666.53
Amaortisation charge during the year 222 61
Disposals / Adjustments -
As at March 31, 2023 1,889.14
|
| Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 419.97
Gross carrying amount
Cost as at March 31, 2023 2,309.11
Additions 22535
Disposals [ Adjustments -
As at March 31, 2024 2,534 46
Accumulated Amortisation
Amortisation as at March 31, 2023 1,889.14
Amartisation charge during the year 250.11
Disposals [ Adjustments =
As at March 31, 2024 2,139.25
395.21

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024

ThH Cnmpany astlmal:&a the uaeful Irﬁa ul th& suf'rwara to be 4 years based on the axpacted

technical obsolescence of such assets. However, the actual useful life may be shorter or longer
than 4 yvears, depending on technical innovations and competitor actons.

2. During the year, the Company has reviewed its inangible assets for impairment koss as required
by Indian Accounting Standard 38 - “Intangible Assels”™. |n the opinion of management, no

provision for impairment loss is considered necessary.

4. (b) Rightto use Asset

Gross carrying amount

Cost as at March 31, 2022 (Buildings)
Additions

Amortisation charge during the year
As at March 31, 2023

Cost as at March 31, 2023 (Buildings)
Additions

Amortisation charge during the year
As at March 31, 2024

208,29

7436
133.83

133,93
225.09

T7.39
281.63

3. Right to use Asset” [refer nole no. 35)

(o
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5. Other Non-Current Financial Asset {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
At March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
MNeon-current bank balances
Fixed deposits with maturty for more than 12 months 1,628.07 185.00
Earmarked fixed deposits with maturity for mane than 12 months * 309.73 33704
1,937.80 532.04
Others
Security deposit for utilities and premises 25.84 28.51
Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks 3367 1.66
59.51 3017
[Total 1,997.31 562.21

* Earmarked deposits are restricted and Includes deposits towards Seftlement Guaranties Fund (Rafer Nofe 36)

B. Income Taxes

(a) Income Tax Expense (A%, in Lakhs)
For the year For the yoar
Particulars ended ended

31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Cument tax expense Tr2.00 T48.00
Deferred Tax (24.19) {5.23)
Income tax adjustment relating to sarkier year = 10.02
Taotal Income lax expenses Ta4T.81 T52.80

(b} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate;

(A%. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
ProfitfiLoss) before income tax expense 2,958.00 2.913.84
Other disallowances & Adjustrments 10617 58.31
Bought Forward Losses of earlier years - -
Profit’{Loss) belore income tax expense 308417 287215
Tax rate (5a) + £5.168 £25.168
Tax at the applicable rate 77118 T48.03
Income Tax Expense (Rounded off) 772.00 748,00
(e} Deferred Tax assels (Met) {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Pttt March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Deferred incomse tax assets
Felated to Dizallowance Uz, 43 B 44.48 20.37
Remeasuramant of defined benefil plans 3.93 (1.74)
Leases 6.60 89.30
Fixed Aszets: Impact of difference between tax 4.75 (7.17)
depraciation and depraciation charged for the financial
raporting
Defarred tax assel 58.77 077
Met gain' loss on investments measuned al FYTPL 1.30 (0.43)
Deferred tax Hability 1.30 {0.43)
Deferred tax asset (net) 58.46 30.34

POWER EXCHAMNGE INDIA LIMITED
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Movements in Deferred Tax (Rs. in Lakhs)
_ In Profit Closing
Particulars Balance as on | in profit and | Balance as on l.'ll:l-' Com- | on 31t March
15t April 22 | Loss in 22-23 | 31stMarch 23| prehensive 2024
' Income in
23-24
Deferred Tax Assels
Ralated to Disallowance 3258 (2.21) 30.37 14.11 44 48
Vs 43 8B
Leases 9.43 (0.12) 717 13.77 B.60
Remeasurement of 0.48 (2.21) (1.74) 5.687 3.93
defined benefil plang
Fixed Assets: Impact (15.63) 8.45 (7.17) 11.92 4.75
of difference between
tax depreciation and
depreciation charged for
the financial reporting |
Total i 42.48 (4.55) | 21.45 33.55 59.77
Deferred Tax Liability '
Met (gain) floss on (0.43) (0.43) 1.30 1.30
investments measured al
FVTPL |
| ;
Total ! 42.48 {4.98) 21.03 34.85 1.30
|
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 58.46
= refer note 7 (c) above
7. Hon Current tax assets (As. in Lakhz)
As at Asat
i March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Income tax paid including TDS 1,488.56 77812
Total 1,488.56 Traz2
8. Other Non-Current Assels (As. in Lakhs)
Ag at Ag at
i March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Prepaid expenses 0.50 0.14
Deferred Lease payments 3.63 1.15
Total 4.13 1.29

GTE POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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{As. in Lakhs)
Particulars = As i
) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mon current
Secured, considered good* :
Unsecured, considered good
Trade Recalvables which have significant increase in
Cradit Risk
Less : Credit impaired
Current
Secured, considered good”® b 14.54
Unsecured, considerad good - -
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in B s
Cradit Risk
3.23 14.54
Less : Credit impaired - -
Total 323 14.54

*Trade receivables are secured against deposits received from Membars (Refer Note 17)

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

[As. in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total o8 on
Particulars Less than | & months - 1-2 23 | More than | March 31,
6 months | 1 year years years 3 years 2024
i} Undispuled Trade 323 - - - 3.23
recaivables -
considened good
(i} Undisputed Trade - - - L 3
Recaivablas — which
havea significant
incréasa in credit risk
(i} Dispulted Trade - - 2
Racaivables — cradil
impairad
Less Aliowances for Credit - - S w
boss
Total Trade receivables a.23
Unbilled Revenue =
Total 3.23

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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(b} Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023
_ Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment m..'
Particulars Less than 6 months- 12 23 | More than | 9n March
Gmonths = 1year | years years | 3years | 31,2023
i} Undisputed Trade receivablas | 14.54 | - - - 14.54
- mﬂﬁi:ie-red good
léiI] Ui"-lﬁnuh&d Trade Receivables | - - -l . .
- which have significant
incredse b credt nsk
{iii) Disputed Trade Recaivables - : = I g a A
credit impaired |
Less Allowances for Gredit loss |
Total Trade recelvables [ 14.54
Unbilled Revenue | T — =
_Tntul 1 | 14.54
10.  Cash & cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
S March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks on current account:
Margin and Settlement Account® 16,832.64 3,533.67
Othars 39.03 53.26
Deposits hald for the purpose of mesting short tarm cash
commitments
Margin money* 3,00:0.00 602.03
Others .
Total 19,871.67 4,188.97
* Represents amount received from members towards setifernent obligations which is payable on the
date of settlement of the transactions and margin money from members which is also repavable on the
sattlernent of the transactions (Refer Note 18 (i)).
(a) Cash and cash equivalents consisis of the following for the purpose of the cash flow stalements:
o u-r.:;:t 2024 Ilhm:;:t 2023
Cash and cash eguivalenis 19.871.67 4. 188.97
19,871.67 4,188.97

{7
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11. Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Tt D sy | it v
Fixed deposits
- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less - 3,870.96
than 12 months
= with ariginal maturity for more than 12 months 938620 5,960.06
Earmarked fixed deposits *
- with original maturty for more than 3 months but less 228.50
than 12 months
- with maturity of kass than 12 months at the balance 474.00 258.41
sheeal date
- with original maturity for more than 12 months 72287 624.00
10,583.17 10,941.92
* Earmarked deposits are restricted and includes deposits towards Settlement Guaraniee Fund
{Reder Note 36)
12. Other Current Financial Assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)
ook unm‘::t 2024 nhrm‘;: 2023
A) Security Deposits 1.08 0.30
B) Advance Recoverable in Cash or Kind
Unsecured, considered good 2.28 1.30
Doubtful
2.28 1.30
Less : Allowance for doubtful debis
2.28 1.30
C) Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks 403.28 251.33
Total 406.64 252.92

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

In Mutual funds
Kotak Money Market Scheme- Direct Plan-Growth

No of Units 54385 , NAV Rs 3678.6748 per Unit, FMV
Rs 22,41,193 (Previous year 20,81,370)

S8l Magnum Uitra Short Duration Fund-Direct
Plan - Growth

Mo of Units 501.82; NAV Rs 4981.82 per Unit, FMV Rs
27,81,142 (Previous year 25,88,750)

22.41

27.81

20.81

25.89

Katak Liquid Fund Scheme Dir Growth

4,75

No of Units 97.4176; NAV Rs 4688.6827 per Unit, FMV
Rs 475,301 (Previous year NIL)

ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Dir- Growth

50.63

Mo of Units 178879.41; NAY As 27.80 per Unit, FMV Rs
50,62 814 [Previous year NIL)

ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund -Drt Growth

50.84

Mo of Units 14557.11; NAV Rs 343 46 per Unit, FMV Rs
50,83, 765 (Previous year MIL)

SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth

0.59

Mo of Units 15.7027; NAY Rs 3757 6308 per Unit, FMY
FAs 59,342 [Previous year MIL)

157.04

46.70

Aggregate Book value - Quated mutual funds

150.16

45.00

Motes -

1)  There is no diminulion of value as compared to Market valua.
2]  The inwestmant doas not include any invesimeanis made in (i) subsidianas, (i) associates,
{iii} joint ventures, or (iv) contralled special purposa entities.

Other Current Assets (A%, in Lakhs)
Particulars u-rml;;.‘:m m:ura:tm
Prepaid Expenses 14.62 7.26
Delerred Lease payment 1.80 1.5
Advances to Emplovees 0.62 0.31
Advance to Suppliers 1.09 0.55
Balances with service lax authorities 1.15 1.15
Total 19.27 10.82
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(a) Equity Share Capital
(Rs. in Lakhs)
{1} Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
Particulars As at March As at March
- 31,2024 31,2023
Authorised
100,000,000 (P.Y.100,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 sach 10,000.00 10,000.00
20,000,000 (P.Y.20,000,000) Preference sharas of 2,000.00 2.000.00
Rs. 10 each
Issued
58,470,050 (P.Y. 58,470,050) Equity shares of 5.847.01 5.847.01
Rs.10 each
Subscribed & Paid up
58,470,050 (P.Y. 58,470,050) Equity shares of 5847.01 5,547.01
RAs.10 sach , fully paid
{ii)y Movement in Equity Share Capital {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2024 31, 2023
Equity share Capital 5.84T.01 5,B47.01
Outstanding at the end of the Year 5B47.01 5,847.01
(i) Movement in Equity Shares ( No. of Shares)
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Parcuiar March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Equity shares 58,470,050 58,470,050
Outstanding at the end of the Year 58,470,050 58,470,050

{iv) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par valug of Rs. 10 par shara. Each

holder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share,

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company have recommended a final dividend of Rs. 1.5 per
equity share of the face value of Rs. 10 sach for the financial year ended 315t March 2024 subject
to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

FOWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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(v} Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shares
z Asat Asat
MSE Invastmants Limited Mo. of share 17,076,527 17,076,527
held
% of Holding 29.21% 20.21%
Mational Commadity & Derivatives Mo. of share 18,339 852 20,000,020
Exchange Limited held
% of Holding 33.08% 34 21%
GMRA Energy Limited (Member) No. of share 4,000,000 4,000,000
held
% of Holding 6.84% 6.84%
West Bengal State Electricity Ho. of share 4,000,000 4,000,000
Distribution Company Limited held
(Member)
% of Holding &.84% 6.84%
Power Finance Corporation Limited Ho. of share 3,220,000 3,220,000
held
% of Holding 551% 5.51%
Gujaral Urja Vikas Migam Limited Mo, of share 2,500,000 2,500,000
{Membar) held
% of Holding 4.28% 4.28%
Tata Power Trading Company Mo, of share held 2,500,000 2,500,000
Limited (Member)
% of Holding 4.28% 4.28%
NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited | No. of share held 2/923.503 2,923,503
% of Holding 5.00% 5.00%
(wi) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
(As. in Lakhs)
“No. of % of Total % Change during
SaTICtar hianua Shares shares the year
MSE Investmeants Limidad 17,076,527 29.21% 0%
Mational Commodity & Derivatives 18,335,852 J3.08% 1.13%
Exchange Limited
Tatal 36,416,419

(vil) Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Power Markel) Regulations, 2021 ('PMR’), had been
naotified w.e.f 15th August, 2021, PXIL had filed the petition in Maonth ol March 2023 seeking extension
beyond 31st March 2023 to mest the shareholding pattern as prescribed under Regulation 15 of
the Power Market Regulations, 2021. Hon'ble Commission vide order dated 20th November, 2023
granted additional time till 30.09.2024 1o meet shareholding norms prescribed at Regulation 15 of
the CERC [Power Market) Regulations, 2021

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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{b) Other Equity
Retained Eamings (R&. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Fariculars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Opening Balance 1,143.99 (1.022.22)
Profit for the year 221019 2,161.04
Other Comprehensive Income (15.83) 6.90
Tax impact on Remeasurament of defined benefit plans 383 {1.74)
Closing Balance 3,342.48 1,143.99
Mon Current llabilities {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Raeuiare March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Provision for Leave Encashment 130.63 100.86
Provision for Gratuity 3.40 .
Lease Liability 2239 94.67
Total as7.04 185.52
Deposits (Unsecured) {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
o March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Security Depasit - Banks 700,00 00,00
Security Deposit - Members (Refer Mate 37) B0G.47 753.10
Total 1,506.47 1,453.10
Current Financial Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
bty March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
a) Margin & Settlement cbligation due to members® 21 37287 G6.560.19
b} Dividend payable on 10% Cumulative Oplional - 724.31
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCAPS) **
¢) Liability for Expenses (refer note 33 for details of 895.10 289.89
dues to micro and small enterprises)
d) Provisions - Others 0.30 0,70
&} Oiher Payables 44,16 58.87
f} Lease Liability B83.94 74,55
Total 22.396.37 ¥,749.51

{i} " Represents amount received from members fowards settliement obligations which is payable on
the date of settlement of the Iransactions and margin money from members which is also repayable

on the settlement of the ransactions (Reder Note 11).

(i) “"The Company had issued 10,000,000 shares of 10% Cumulative Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares (OCAPS) of As 10 each. The said OCRPS were converted
inte Equity Shares on 17th May 2019, in the ratio of 1 equity share for every 1 OCRAPS
held. Further the Company had made a provision of Arears of Preference Dividend by
way of inlerest / finance costs as required by Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) for a
period from date of issue up to 17th May, 2019 amouniing to Rs. 72,430.83 thousands/-.
Further, The Board in its Meating hald on 18th May, 2023 recommended for payment of cumulative
Preference Dividend Arrears of Rs. 7.24 Crores subject to approval of Shareholders of the
Company. Accordingly, the same was consented by Sharsholders in 15th Annual General Meeting
held an 12th September, 2023 and the same was paid accordingly.

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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Trade Payables

{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
ARSI March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

Trade Payables

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 52T 14.68

-Others 889,84 27521

Trade Payables-Others - -

Total 895.10 289.89

19.

=0

Trade Payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023

Total as on March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods

from due date of payment
Particulars b vngipuind
Less than 1 year S5.27 736.61
1-2 years 140.13
2-3 years 13.08
More than 3 years
Total trade payables as on March 31, 2024 5.27 889.84

Total as on March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods

from due date of payment
Undisputed - Undisputed -
Particiars MSME Others
Less than 1 year 14.68 26323
1-2 years = 11.58
2-3 yaars £ 0.40
More than 3 years =
Total trade payables as on March 31, 2023 14.68 275.1
Other Current Liabilities
{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
el mT March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Income received in advance 54.49 83.18
Statutory Dues Og. 72 To.60
Tatal 151,22 162.78
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(As. in Lakhs)
Faticiars H-;;:t 2024 nuﬂml,.aun
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Provision for Leave Encashment 19.14 B.00
Provision for Varable Pay 119.47 76.81
Provision for Gratuity 23.57 13.80
Total 162.18 96.51
Revenue from operations
i{Fs. in Lakhs)
For the ended| For the ended
Eadicuins S March.2¢ 31.March-23
Operating revenue
Transaction Charges 3.648.08 3,764.24
Transaction Charges (Renewabile Energy cerificate & 1.649.14 B84.36
Energy saving certificate)
Other operating revenue
Annual Mambership Feas 124.55 167.20
Processing Fees 0.05 0.05
Total 5,421.83 4,815.85
Other Income
{Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year ended | For the ended
G +1.March 24 Priphdarly
Interest income earned on Financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost
Fixed Daposit B69.96 638.55
Other Income
Interest on Financial Asset 1.87 1.79
Miscellaneous Income 0.23 0.02
Interest on 1T Refund (AY 2021-22) - B8.87
(3ain on Laasa Rent Conceassion Account - .83
(Refer note no. 36 (5))
Gain on sale of investments 4,48 -
Profit on sale of fized assat - 0.07
Met gain on investments measured at FYTPL 5.8 1.70
Provisions no longer required written back 18.38 81.59
Total 500.10 T34.43
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Employee benefit expenses
(Rs. in Lakhs)
S e ended 31.March-24|ended ai-I::;-ﬂ
Salaries and alowances 1.001.78 ¥re.00
Centribution to Provident and other funds 30,45 25.30
Stafl wellare expenses 5056 27.01
Contribution to Group Gratuity Scheme (Refer Note 2B(B)i)) 10.45 10.76
Total 1,083.24 841.07
Finance cosls
[As. in Lakhs)
For the y
e muia:-u::ma m:l::r am
Finance Costs:
Interest Expense - Inferest on securily deposit 34,39 27.65
{Riefer Note 37 )
Interest on lease liabilities 13.21 19.03
Total 47.60 46.69
Depreciation and Amortization expense
{Fs. in Lakhs)
For the ended | For the
Sirabored 51 March-24 314mw
Depreciation B.26 8.85
Amortization 250,11 22261
Arnorization on financial asse 1.80 1.80
Amortization of right 1o use asset 77.39 74.36
Total 337.57 a08.62
Other expenses
(As. in Lakhs)
bt e ma?u::h-;“
Rent (Refer note no.35) 7.86 B6.34
IT Consultancy & Supporn Charges 53.60 49.57
Professional Charges 80.62 106.88
Travelling & Conveyvance Expensa B6. 76 G2.28
Business promotion expense 1,114.46 7i4.22
Electricity Charges 12.41 11.70
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{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul Fu'a'gn year ended Fnra:lu year ended
Software Expanses 928 18.69
Quisourcing Charges 2897 34.33
Repairs & maintenance - trading & computer system 2.67 4.79
Repairs & maintenance Others 3.25 4.04
Recruitment Charges 7.64 1.3
Insurance 0.76 0.87
Fees & Subscription 6.31 6.23
Annual Registration Charges - CERC 20.00 20.00
PHNEST Hesling & Infrastructure Fees 136.59 121.90
PHEST Support & Development Fees 143.91 101.20
Printing & Stationary B.22 4.85
Communication expanse 4 16 4.46
Advertisement Expense 35.34 46.00
Auditars rermuneration [Reler Note below) 5.09 5.03
Intermet Expenses 3.02 3.18
Security expenseas 10.53 10.56
Leasa line expenses 3.03 3.33
Committes Sitting Fees 20.55 25.00
Director Sitting Feas 15.50 10.50
Slorage expenses 1.36 1.26
Compensation Paid lo Members 34.65 -
Sundry Balance written off 2.86 7.40
Other Expansas 36.11 14.05
Total 1,885.52 1,440.08
MNote:
[Rs. in Lakhs)
j  31-Marc
Audit e 4,00 4,00
Fees for limited review 1.00 1.00
Dut of pocket expensas 0.09 0.03
Tatal 5.08 5.03
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{As. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended Fn;ﬂufqrm
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share
Profit {Loss) after tax 2210 2,161
Less: Preference dividend - -
Prafit attributabla 1o ordinary shareholders 2210 2,181
[Rs. in thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary sharas for basic 58,470,050 5B 470,050
EPS (Mos)
{ used as denominator for calculating basic EPS)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted 58,470,050 58,470,050
EPS (Mos)
{ used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS)
Mominal value of ordinary share Rs.10 Rs. 10
Earnings per share - Basic (Rs.) 3.78 3.70
Earnings per share- Diluted [Rs.) 3,78 3.70

Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 19 {Ind AS 19) on Employee Benefit as notified under Rule
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies { Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,
Defined Benefit Plan:

{a) Providen! Fund: Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund for the year ended March
31, 2024, amounting o Rs. 30.45 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 25.30 lakhs) has been charged 1o

Statement of Profit & Loss,

(b} Gratuity: Company has charged the Graluity expense to Statlement of Profit & Loss based on
the actuarial valuation of gratuity lability at the end of the year, The projected unil credit method
used 1o show the position as al March 31, 2024 is as under:

Balance Sheet

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit

obligation over the year are as follows:

{Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2024
Particulars Present Value | Fair Value of Total
of Obligation Plan Assets

Al the beginning of the year 44.83 (31.03) 13.80
Current senvice Cost 9.13 9_1_3._.
Interest cost / (incoma) 3.35 _[5.32} 1.03
Past Service cost
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: March 31, 2024
of Obligation | Plan Assets
Re-measurements - -
Expected return on plan assets . 0.60 0.60
Actuarial (gains)losses on obligations - due - =
ta change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gainshiosses on obligations - dus 1.10 - 1.10
to change in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gainsiiosses on obligations - due 13.92 13.82
10 experence
Employer Contributions = (12.63) (12.63)
Benafits paid {11.25) 11.25 -
Al the end of the year 61.09 (34.13) 26.96
{Rs=. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2023
Particulars |Present Value of| Fair Value of 135
Obligation Plan Assets |
At the beginning of the year 50.99 {34.19) 16.80
Current service Cost 9,54 0.54
Interast cost / (income) an {2.49) 122
Past Service cost -
Re-measurements
Expected refurn on plan assets - 0.46 045
Actuarial (gainsplosses on obligations - due (0.02) (0.02)
to change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gainshlosses on cbiigations - dug (0.72) 10.72)
to change in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gainsplosses on ocbligations - due (6.62) 8.62)
10 BXpETIenGS
Employer Contributions - (6.85) (6.86)
Benefits paid (12.05) 12.05 (0.00)
At the end of the year d4.83 (31.03) 13.80
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The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the vear/period (34.13) (31.03)
Liability as at the end of the year/period 61.09 44.83
Met (Liability)/Asset disclosed in the Balance Sheet 26.96 13.80
Less: Provision for employes not coverad under scheme - .
Met (LiabilityVAsset disclosed in the Balance Sheet 26.96 13.80
Balance sheet reconciliation
(As. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening net llability 13.80 16.80
Expanses recognized in Statement of Prafit or Loss 1018 10.76
Expenses recognized in OCI 15.63 (6.90)
Met (liability)asset transfer out =
Employers contribution {12.63) (B.86)
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 26.96 13.80
Less: Provision for employee nol covered under scheme - -
Met Liability/{ Asset) disclosed in the Balance Sheet 26.96 13.80
Statement of Profit & Loss
Het interest cost for current period
{As. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Interest cost .35 am
Interest income [2.32) [2.49)
Het interest cost for current period 1.03 1.22
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Curran service cost 9.13 9.54
Met interast cost 1.03 1.22
Past Service Cost 5
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & 10.16 10.76
Loss
Add: Gratuity expenses in respect of employees not -
covered under the scheme
Met Expenses / (Income) Recognized in Statement of 10.16 10.76

Profit and Loss
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Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income

{As. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Re-measurement 15.02 (7.36)
Expecied retum on plan assets 0.60 0.45
Actuarial (gain) or loss = z
Met (income)expense for the period recognized in OCI 15.63 (6.90)
Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:
[As. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.48% 7.27%
Rate of return on plan assets 7.48% 7.27%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Aftrition rate For service 4 years | For service 4 years
and balow 10.00% | and balow 10.00%:
p.a. Forservice 5 | p.a. Forservice 5
years and abava years and above
2.00% p.a. 2.00% p.a.
Sensitivity Analysis
(Rs. in Lakhs)
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions
Iz
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Projected benefil obligation on current assumptions B1.09 44 83
Delta effect of +1% change in rale of discounting (4.11) {3.12)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 4.67 362
Deha effect of +1% change in salary increase 4.73 3.68
Delta effect of -1% change in salary increase (4.13) (3.22)
Dalta effect of +1% change in employee tumover 0.52 D48
Delta effect of -1% change in amphoyes turnover (0.63) {0.58)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely fo occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may
be corretated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the dafined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporing period) has been applied as when calculating the
defined banedit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
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Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund is as follows:

Particulars

15t Following Year

2nd Following Year

3rd Following Year

4th Following Year

5th Foliowing Year

Sum of Years 6 to 10

Sum of Years 11 and above

(A= in Lakhs)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

6.32 1.11

1.59 1.24

16.57 1.31

15.06 1384

1.20 11.89

20.85 14.22

66.38 52.80

In compliance with Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Fules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standands) Ameandmeant
Rules, 2016 the required disclosures are given in the fable batow:

A Names of the related parties and relationship:

Related Party

Mature of relationship

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited

Uitimate Holding Company of the Investing
Party of which the Company is an Associate

MNational Commodity & Derivatives Exchangs Limited

Imvesting party of which the Company is an
Associate

NSE Investmenis Limited

Irvesting party of which the Company is an
Associale

NSE.IT Limited

Subsidiary of Investing party of which the
Company iz an Associale

CXI10 Technologies P Lid

Stepdown Subsidiany of Investing pary of
which the Company 5 an Associale

Key management personnel including directors

"Mr. Vijay Kumar Agarwal

Independent Director & Chairman

Mr. Pramod Kumar Vaishya

Indapandant Dirsctor

*Dir. Kirit, 5. Parikh

Independent Director

Mr. Ashok Sethi Indepandent Director
Mr, Yatrik Vin Mon-Executive Director
Mr. Aful Roongta Mon-Executive Director

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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Mir. Ashok Kurnar Prusty Mon-Executive Direcior
**Mr. Harish Ahuja Mon-Exacutive Diracior
***Mr. Avinash Mohan Mon-Executive Direclor
#Mr. Satyajit Ganguly Managing Director and Chief Executive officer

* Sacond Term as Independent Direcior complated on 31sf March 2024

** Appointed as Non -Executive Director, promolars Calegory w.e.! 18th May, 2023

*** Appointed as Non -Exaculive Director, promoters Category w.el 08th Augusi 2023
# Appoinfed a5 Managing Oirector & CEQ w.a.f 270 Juma, 2023,

B. Dwatails of transactions with related parties are as follows:
(Ra. in Lakks)
Name of the related party Nature of transaction 2023-24 2022-23
CXI0O Technotogies Pvt Lid “Pratyay Hosting & 17.89 18,78
(w.e.f -315t December 2023) Infrastructure fees *
"Closing balance (Credit)f 4.59 2,70
Dabat
= Sundry Craditors®
MSEIT Limited IT Management / Suppart 362.51 302,73
Charges
"Closing balance (Credit)f 3364 .
Debit
- Sundry Creditors®
Key management personnel including directors
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Name of the related party Nature of transaction 2023-24 2022-23
Mr. Prabhajit Kumar Sarkar | Short term Employee benefits 104.61
(Managing Director & Chief : .
Executive Officer) (from 1st Fosi -Employment benefits $ 30.24
April 2022 to 313t March 2023) - 134.85
Provision for variable pay - . 21.60
unpaid as on March 31
Mr. Satyajit Ganguly Short term Employee benefits 107 .66
{Managing Director & .
Chief Exacutive Officer) |05t -Employment benefits $ 542
{frarmn 27-Jun-2023 to 113.08 -
S1-Mar-2024) Provision for variable pay - 26.68
unpaid as on March 31
Directors Directors Sitting Fees 36.05 35.50

Above transactions are disclosed excluding Service Tax & GST.

5 Az the liabilities for defined benefit plan are provided on acilunal basis for the company as a whole,

the amount pertaining to key managerial persons are not included
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Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracis remaining 1o be executed
Capital Commitments - Rs, Wil (Previous year - NIL)

Contingent liabilities

Contingent Liabdlity in respect of disputed demand of income tax amounting to Rs. 35.97 lakhs (March
31, 2023 : Rs. 3597 lakhs ) and Disputed Service Tax demand of Rs 15.67 lakhs for the peiod 1st
Qctober 2016 till 30th June 2017 (March 31, 2023- As 15.67 lakhs)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to thie Chiaf
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsibla for allocating
resources and assessing perfformance of the operating segments, has been identified as the MD & GEQ
of the Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. facilitating trading in power
and the activities incidental thereto within India, hence does not have any reporiable Segments as per
Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments”,

Trade Payables includes Rs 5.27 lakhs (March 31, 2023; Rs 14.68 lakhs) due to Micro, Small & Medium
Enterprises. Total culstanding dues o Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises have been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.
The company has cenain dues lo suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act”). The disclosure pursuant 1o the said MSMED Act are as follows.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March As at March
o, 2024 31, 2023
Principal amount dug 1o suppliars registered wnder the MSMED 827 14.68
Act and remaining unpaid as at year end.
Interest dug to suppliers registared under the MSMED Act and il il
remalning unpaid as at year end.,
Primcipal amounts paid to suppiers registensd under the Mil Ml
MSMED Act, beyond the appoinied day during he vear,
Interest paid other than under Saction 16 of MESMED Act il il
o suppliers registiered undar the MSMED Act, beyond the
appoinied day duging the year.
Interast paid undar Section 16 of MSMED Act fo suppiiers Mil Mil
registerad under the MEMED Act beyond the appointed day
chufinng the year,
Interest due and payable iowards suppliens regislentd wndar Hil Mil
MSMED Act for paymenls already made
Furthar interest remaining due and payabie for eariier years Ml Mil

In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if
realised in the ordinary course of business.
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1. Following are the changes in the carrying value of right to use assats for the year ended March 31,

2024,
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Category of Right to use Assets
Particulars. Mumbai Delhi Total
Office Office
Balance as of April 1, 2023 47 .59 B6.24 133.93
Additions 225.09 225.09
Depreciation 60,10 60.10
Balance as at March 31,2024 212.59 86.34 298,93

2.  The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024 :

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Category of Lease Liability
e e

Balance as at April 1, 2023 58.34 110.88 169,22
Additions 225.09 - 225.09
Finance cost accrued during the parod 3,89 9,32 13.21
Paymant of lease liabilities 74.15 2553 95,68
Balance as at March 31,2024 213.18 94.67 307.85
Amount Recognised as Current liability 66.21 17.73 83.94
Amaount Recognised as Non - Current liabélity 146.97 T6.54 2230

The Company does not face a significant Hoguidity risk with regard 1o its lease labilities as the curment
assels are sufficient to meet the obligations related 1o lease labilities as and when they fall due.

Remal expense recorded for shord-lgrm leases was "Rs 7.86 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Company has constituted a ‘Settlement Guaranmea Fund' [SGF) on 15th December, 2010, The
members are required to contribute to SGF in form of ‘Interest Free Secunty Deposit” (IFSD). The said
IFSD is refundable at the time of cessation of membership. IFSD towards SGF collected from members
amounts to Rs. 473.058 lakhs as at 31st March 2024 (Rs. 422 306 lakhs as at 318t March, 2023) and
the same is grouped under the head “Deposits from Members (Unsecured)’ which is invested in Fixed

L
4.
{P.Y¥ March 31, 2023- 6.34 lakhs),
36.
Deposits with Banks,
ar.

In accordance with Regulation 27 of PMR regulations 2021, effective from August 15, 2021 onwards, “The
Power Exchange shall distribute at least 70% of the returmn eamed on the initial security deposit invested
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in financial year to the mamber of Power Exchanga in proportion 1o initial security daposit of the membar
and duration of which such deposit was held with the Power Exchange within 45 days of the last date of
the financial year”.

Accordingly, provision for 0% of interest earned on such Initial security deposit payable to the members

amounting to Rs 34.39 lakhs, P.Y 27.65 lakhs (less TDS of As 3.44 lakhs P.Y 2.77 lakhs ) has been made
in the: books.

(I}  Fair Value Measurements
(&) Financial Instruments by category

(Rs. in Lakhs)
oAz March 31,200 [ Maec B 4653

Financial Assets
Investments 157.04
Trade receivables 3.23 14.54
Caszh and Cash equivalents 19.871.67 4,188.97
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12,520.97 11,473.96
Other recaivables 456.15 283.09
Fixed Deposits 15.,520.97 12,075.99
Total financial assets 48,540.02 28,036.55
Financial liabilities
Deposits 1,506.47 1,453.10
Diher liabilities 21,501 .27 745062
Total financial liabilities 23,007.74 8,912.72

The carrying amount of Trade receivable, trade payables, deposits other receivable, cash and cash
equivalenis including other current bank balances and other Rabilities including deposits, creditors for
capital expendifure eic are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to current and short term
nature of such balances.

For Financial assets and liabéities that are measured at fair vatue, the carrying amounts ane equal 1o the
fair value.

()  Financial Risk Management

The Company’s business activilies expose it 1o a variaty of financial risks, namely credil sk,
liquidity risk and clearing and settlarmant risk. Tha Company’s senior management has the overall
respansibility for the establishment and cversight of the Company’s risk management practices, The
Company™s risk management practices are established o identify and anakyses the risks faced by
the Company, 1o set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk managemeni practices and syslems of the company are reviewed regularly 10 reflect changeas
in markat conditions and the Comparny's activities.
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(A} Credit Risk

Credit rigk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay
the amounts due causing financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises from Company’s activities
in investments and ocutstanding receivables from customars,

Trade Recelvables

The Company has a prudent and conservative process for managing Hs credit risk arising in the
course of ils business activities. Invoices raised to customers is generally collected within reascnable
time of a month from the clients after raising of invoices. There are no such instances of default in
paymanis from clients.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to rade receivables are limited on account of member's
deposiis kept by the Company as collateral which can be utiised in casa of member delaull. Further,
amount lying in Settlement Guarantes Fund (SGF) is available for utiisation in case of settlement
default by member. All trade receivables are reviewad and assessed for default on a quarterly basis.

Other Financial Assets

The Company maintaing exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and
imvastments in markatable dabt investments including mutual funds. The Company's investments
are primarily into AAA / AA high rating instruments and thersfore the credit risk is low.

The Company’s maximum exposure 1o credil risk as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is the
carrying value of each class of financial assets as disclosed in nofe 6, 10,11, 12, & 13,
(8) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s inabdity to meet its cash flow commitments on tima. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient stock of cash and marketable securities and
maintaining availability of standby funding through an adequate line up of commitied credit fadilities,

The lollowing fable shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on
contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance Sheat date.

{Rs. in Lakhs)
putctes | oty uose 2 T 2|1

Az at March 31, 2024

(i) Deposits 1,506.47 1,506.47 1,506.47

(i} Other financial kabilithes 21.501.27 21,501.27 - 21.501.27
Carrying Less than 12 | More than 12 Total
amaunt months months

| As at March 31, 2023

{iil Deposits 1,453.10 1,453.10| - 1,453.10

G} Other financial liabilities 7.450.62 7.459.62| : 7,450.62
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(€} Clearing and settlement risk

Dur claanng services guaranies final setlement of trades and manage counterparty rsk. The
financial isks associated with clearing operations are further mitigated by stric! membearship rules
including supervisory capital, technical and organisational criteria. The maintenance of prudent
levels of margin and defaull funds to cover exposures o participants. Each member deposits
marging to cover the theoretical costs which the clearing service would incur in order to close out
open positions in the event of the meamber's delault.

(hiry Capital Management

The Company considers the following componants of its balance sheet as its managed capital:

Total equity (as shown in the balance sheel) - retained profit / (boss), share capital.

39. Additional Regulatory Information (Ratios)
Currant ratio (in Total Cumrent Assata | Tolal Currant 121 1.51 -30.36% | Incraags
times) Liabilities in eurrent
liabiliteg as
compared o
Curfent assets
Raturn on egquity Met Profits after tax | Average 2T AT WETR -25.85% | Due to lower
(RICHE] (in %) Shareholder's pralil margin
Equity as compared
b0 prEnidos
| yoar
Trada recaivables Revanua from Awg. Trade 1681147 331.29| 134987.81% | Signifzant
turmizser ratio {in Oparations Recelvable Imcreass in
tirmes)* excluding rensenue Trom
saftlement operatons
balances and gecreass
recaivable from ir trace
members recénvables &5
coampared o
PrEvIoUS Yaar
Trade payablas Other axpensas less | Average Trade 1.73 350 -217.91% | Significant
tumawer rafio (in nan cash axpensa Payablas Imcreass In
tirmes) items axcluding trade payables
saftlament 85 oompared
balanceas o prenioars
payabio 10 s
mgrmibers
Mat capital tumover | Revenua from Wiarking 1.01 0.8 B.83% | Signifecant
ratic [in timas) Oparations Capital Incrasse in
waorking capital
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Mat profit ratio {in %) (Met Prof after tax | Revenue from 40.55% | 44.98% -0, B5%
Operations
Ratum on capital Eamang befone Capital #1.32% | 55.34% +25.33% | Dua 1o kawer
employed (ROCE)  |inderest and taxes | Employed profit rangin
{im %&) as comparad
1o previous
yaar
Dbt Equity Ratio Total Dabt Eharehoider's 0.03 0.02 085
{in s} (raprasenis lease Sty
liability)
“Debt Survice "Eaming available | "Debt Sunice 54,52 53,90 B2.17% | Intraase in
Coverage Ratio T dabit {inlerest lease liability
{in timeas® sprvice (Med prodit and principle dua 1o renewal
after paymants of leass
laxes + Including |aa5a
depreciation)® paymeants)”
Return on Investment | Income generated | Average 8.11% 5.808% 2.12%
(%) from invested funds | imsested funds
in freasuny
investments

Rabios are g o the exfent appiicable fo the company.

The Company’s pending liigations comprise of proceedings pending with Statutory and Tax Authorities.
The Company has reviewed all its pending proceedings and has made adequate provisions, whenever
required and disclosed the contingent liabilities. where ever applicable, in its financial statements. The
Company does not expact the outcome of these proceedings to have a malerial impact on its financial
position (Refer note no 16(vii) & 32)

“{i) Wilful Defaulter : The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institutions or government or any govemment authority.

i) Relationship with struck off Companies: The Company has no transactions with the companies
struck off under the Companies Act, 2013,

“{ili) Detalls ol benami property held: No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against
the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder,

“(iv] Compliance with number of layers of companies: The Company has complied with the number
of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

| (v} Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Company has not entered Into any

scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previows financial year.

POWER EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED

95)



((SixreenT annuAL REPORT L'E } B PXIL

(i)

{vi)

(i)

(i)

(X

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and Share premium: No funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds by
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or imvest
in party identified by or on behall of the Company (Uitimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not
received any fund from any party (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of
the Company "Ulimale Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Undisclosed income: Thera is no incoma surrendensd or disclosed as income during the current or
previcus year in the lax assessments under tha Income Tax Act, 1961, that has nol been reconded
in the books of account.

Detalls of cypto currency or virtual currency: The Company has not traded ar imvested in crypta
currency or virtual currency during the currant or previous year.

Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property: The Company has nol revalued
its property, plant and eguipment (including right-od-use assets) or intangible assels during the
current Or previous year.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies: There are no charges
or satisfaction which are vat to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the stalutory
period.

42. The Company did not have any long-term confracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
matenal loreseaabls bsses,

43. Forthe year ended March 31, 2024, the Company is not required to transfer any amount into the Invastor
Education & Prodection Fund as required under relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

44, Figures of the previous year have bean regrouped, reclassifiad and rearranged wherever necassan.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For K.5.AIYAR & Co,
Charared Accountanis Ashok Sethi Yatrik Vin
[Firm Registration No.: 100186W] Chairman Diirectar

DiIM: 017415911 [HM: OFeR27Ta5
Sachin A, Negandhi Satyajit Ganguly Shekhar Rao
Partner MD & CED Chief Finanelal Officer
Membership Humber: 112888 LN OERET418
Place : Mumbal Sunil Hingwani
Date : May 17, 2024 Company Secretary
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